
Champaign County Mental Health Board (CCMHB) Meeting Agenda 
Wednesday, April 30, 2025, 5:45PM 

This meeting will be held in person at the 
Shields-Carter Room of the Brookens Administrative Building, 1776 East Washington Street, Urbana, IL 61802 

Members of the public may attend in person or watch the meeting live through this link: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81393675682 Meeting ID: 813 9367 5682 

I. Call to order
II. Roll call

III. Approval of Agenda*
IV. MHB and DDB Schedules, updated MHB Timeline (pages 3-7) No action needed.
V. CCMHB Acronyms and Glossary (pages 8-19) No action needed.

VI. Public Participation/Agency Input See below for details.**
VII. Chairperson’s Comments – Molly McLay

VIII. Executive Director’s Comments – Lynn Canfield

IX. New Business
a) Agency Requests for Consideration (pages 20-59)*

A decision memorandum offers context and possible actions for the Board to take
in response to attached special requests from agencies. Action is needed.

b) Review of Applications for PY2026 Funding (page 60)
The packet includes the list of requests for PY26 funding. To support the board’s
review of each request, which continues from the April 16 study session and
begins with those from RACES, the draft staff reviews are included in the April 16
packet and posted here.

X. Approval of CCMHB Board Meeting Minutes (pages 61-64)*
Action is requested to approve the minutes of the CCMHB’s March 19, 2025 meeting.

XI. Vendor Invoice Lists (pages 65-77)*
Action is requested to accept the “Vendor Invoice Lists” and place them on file. For
information are Additional Details for these expenditures.

XII. Staff Reports - deferred due to review of requests for funding.

XIII. Old Business
a) Evaluation Capacity Building Project Update

An oral update will be provided. Resources developed by the team can be found
at https://www.familyresiliency.illinois.edu/resources/microlearning-videos.

1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81393675682
https://www.champaigncountyil.gov/mhbddb/agendas/mhb/2025/250416_Study_Session/250416_Study_Session_Packet.pdf
https://www.familyresiliency.illinois.edu/resources/microlearning-videos


b) Community Behavioral Health Needs Assessment Activities – deferred. 
c) disAbility Resource Expo Update - deferred. https://disabilityresourceexpo.org 
d) AIR Update (pages 78-85) – deferred. 

Promotional materials supporting recent events are included for information. 
XIV. Public Participation/Agency Input See below for details.** 
XV. Board to Board Reports (page 86) 

XVI. County Board Input 
XVII. Champaign County Developmental Disabilities Board Input 

XVIII. Board Announcements and Input 
XIX. Adjournment 

 
* Board action is requested. 
**Public input may be given virtually or in person. 

If the time of the meeting is not convenient, you may communicate with the Board by 
emailing stephanie@ccmhb.org or leon@ccmhb.org any comments for us to read aloud during the meeting.  
The Chair reserves the right to limit individual time to five minutes and total time to twenty minutes. 
All feedback is welcome. 
The Board does not respond directly but may use input to inform future actions.  
Agency representatives and others providing input which might impact Board actions should be aware of the 
Illinois Lobbyist Registration Act, 25 ILCS 170/1, and take appropriate steps to be in compliance with the Act. 
 

For accessible documents or assistance with any portion of this packet, please contact us (leon@ccmhb.org). 

2

https://disabilityresourceexpo.org/
javascript:void(0);
mailto:leon@ccmhb.org
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=465
https://www.ilga.gov/Commission/jcar/admincode/JCARTitlePart.asp?Title=002&Part=0560
mailto:leon@ccmhb.org


 
 

CCMHB 2025 Meeting Schedule  
5:45PM Wednesday after the third Monday of each month  

Brookens Administrative Building, 1776 East Washington Street, Urbana, IL 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81393675682 (if it is an option) 

 
January 22, 2025 – Shields-Carter Room 
January 29, 2025 – Study Session - Shields-Carter Room 
February 19, 2025 – Shields-Carter Room 
March 19, 2025 – Shields-Carter Room 
March 26, 2025 – Joint Meeting w CCDDB - CANCELLED 
April 16, 2025 – Study Session -Shields-Carter Room 
April 30, 2025 –Shields-Carter Room (off cycle) 
May 21, 2025 – Study Session - Shields-Carter Room 
May 28, 2025 – Shields-Carter Room (off cycle) 
June 18, 2025 – Shields-Carter Room 
July 23, 2025 – Shields-Carter Room 
August 20, 2025 – Shields-Carter Room - tentative 
September 17, 2025 – Shields-Carter Room 
September 24, 2025 – Joint Study Session w CCDDB - Shields-Carter 
October 22, 2025 – Shields-Carter Room 
October 29, 2025 – Joint Study Session w CCDDB - Shields-Carter 
November 19, 2025 – Shields-Carter Room 
December 17, 2025 – Shields-Carter Room - tentative 

 
This schedule is subject to change due to unforeseen circumstances. 

Meeting information is posted, recorded, and archived at http://www.co.champaign.il.us/mhbddb/DDBMeetingDocs.php 
Please check the website or email stephanie@ccmhb.org to confirm meeting times and locations.  

 
All meetings and study sessions include time for members of the public to address the Board. All are welcome to attend, 

virtually or in person, to observe and to offer thoughts during "Public Participation" or “Public Input.”  
An individual’s comments may be limited to five minutes, and total time for input may be limited to twenty minutes. The 

Board does not respond directly but may use the content to inform future actions. 
 

If the time of the meeting is not convenient, you may communicate with the Board by emailing stephanie@ccmhb.org or 
leon@ccmhb.org any comments for us to read aloud during the meeting.  

 
Agency representatives and others providing input which might impact Board actions should be aware of the Illinois 

Lobbyist Registration Act, 25 ILCS 170/1, and take appropriate steps to be in compliance with the Act. 
 

For alternative format documents, language access, or other accommodation or support to participate, contact us in 
advance and let us know how we might help by emailing stephanie@ccmhb.org or leon@ccmhb.org. 

3

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81393675682
http://www.co.champaign.il.us/mhbddb/DDBMeetingDocs.php
javascript:void(0);
mailto:leon@ccmhb.org
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=465
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=465
https://www.ilga.gov/Commission/jcar/admincode/JCARTitlePart.asp?Title=002&Part=0560
javascript:void(0);
mailto:leon@ccmhb.org


 
 

CCDDB 2025 Meeting Schedule 
9:00AM Wednesday after the third Monday of each month 

Brookens Administrative Building, 1776 East Washington Street, Urbana, IL 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81559124557   

 
January 22, 2025 – Shields-Carter Room   
February 19, 2025 – Shields-Carter Room  
March 19, 2025 – Sheilds-Carter Room 
March 26, 2025 5:45PM– joint meeting with CCMHB CANCELLED 

  April 16, 2025 – Shields-Carter Room (off cycle) 
April 30, 2025 – Shields-Carter Room – tentative CANCELLED 
May 21, 2025 – Shields-Carter Room  
June 18, 2025 – Shields-Carter Room 
July 23, 2025 – Shields-Carter Room 
August 20, 2025 – Shields-Carter Room - tentative 
September 17, 2025 – Shields-Carter Room 
September 24, 2025 – Shields-Carter Room – joint study session with MHB 
October 22, 2025 – Shields-Carter Room 
October 29, 2025 5:45PM – Shields-Carter Room – joint study session with MHB 
November 19, 2025 – Shields-Carter Room 
December 17, 2025 – Shields-Carter Room - tentative 

 
This schedule is subject to change due to unforeseen circumstances. 

Meeting information is posted, recorded, and archived at 
http://www.co.champaign.il.us/mhbddb/DDBMeetingDocs.php 

Please check the website or email stephanie@ccmhb.org to confirm meeting times and locations.  
 

All meetings and study sessions include time for members of the public to address the Board. All are welcome to 
attend, virtually or in person, to observe and to offer thoughts during "Public Participation" or “Public Input.”  

An individual’s comments may be limited to five minutes, and total time for input may be limited to twenty 
minutes. The Board does not respond directly but may use the content to inform future actions. 

 
If the time of the meeting is not convenient, you may communicate with the Board by 

emailing stephanie@ccmhb.org or kim@ccmhb.org any comments for us to read aloud during the meeting.  
 

Agency representatives and others providing input which might impact Board actions should be aware of the 
Illinois Lobbyist Registration Act, 25 ILCS 170/1, and take appropriate steps to be in compliance with the Act. 

 
For alternative format documents, language access, or other accommodation or support to participate, contact us in 

advance and let us know how we might help by emailing stephanie@ccmhb.org or kim@ccmhb.org. 
 

4

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81559124557
http://www.co.champaign.il.us/mhbddb/DDBMeetingDocs.php
javascript:void(0);
mailto:kim@ccmhb.org
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=465
https://www.ilga.gov/Commission/jcar/admincode/JCARTitlePart.asp?Title=002&Part=0560
javascript:void(0);
mailto:kim@ccmhb.org


IMPORTANT DATES 
2025 Meeting Schedule with Subjects, Agency and Staff Deadlines, 

and PY26 Allocation Timeline 
 
The schedule offers dates and subject matter of meetings of the Champaign County 
Mental Health Board. Subjects are not exclusive to any given meeting, as other 
matters requiring Board review or action may also be addressed. Study sessions may 
be scheduled on topics raised at meetings, brought by staff, or in conjunction with 
the CCDDB. Included are tentative dates for steps in the funding allocation process 
for PY26 and deadlines related to PY24 and PY25 agency contracts. Regular 
meetings and study sessions are scheduled to begin at 5:45PM and may be 
confirmed with Board staff. 
 

 
12/20/24  Online System opens for Applications for PY2026 Funding. 
 
12/31/24  Agency PY24 Independent Audits, Reviews, Compilations due. 
 
1/22/25  Regular Board Meeting 

Mid-Year Program Presentations 
 
1/29/25  Study Session: Mid-Year Program Presentations 
 
1/31/25  Agency PY25 2nd Quarter and CLC progress reports due. 
 
2/10/25  Deadline for submission of applications for PY26 funding 

(Online system will not accept any forms after 4:30PM). 
 
2/19/25                  Regular Board Meeting  

Discuss list of PY26 Applications and Review Process 
 
3/19/25  Regular Board Meeting 
  Discussion of PY26 Funding Requests 
 
3/26/25                  Joint Meeting with CCDDB CANCELLED 
 
4/9/25  Program summaries released to Board, posted 

online with CCMHB April 16 study session packet. 
 

5



4/16/25  Study Session 
Board Review, Staff Summaries of Funding Requests  
 

4/25/25  Agency PY2025 3rd Quarter Reports due. 
 
4/30/25  Regular Board Meeting (off cycle) 

2024 Annual Report  
 
5/14/25                   Allocation recommendations released to Board, posted 

online with CCMHB May 21 study session packet. 
 
5/21/25   Study Session: Allocation Recommendations 
  
5/28/25   Regular Board Meeting (off cycle) 

Allocation Decisions; Authorize Contracts for PY2026 
 
6/1/25  For contracts with a PY25-PY26 term, all updated PY26 

forms should be completed and submitted by this date. 
 
6/17/25   Deadline for agency application/contract revisions. 
   Deadline for agency letters of engagement w/ CPA firms. 
 
6/18/25                   Regular Board Meeting  

Draft FY2026 Budget, Election of Officers 
 
6/20/25   PY2026 agency contracts completed. 
 
6/30/25                 Agency Independent Audits, Reviews, or Compilations due. 

(only applies to those with calendar FY, check contract) 
 
7/23/25                  Regular Board Meeting  
  
8/20/25           Regular Board Meeting - tentative 
 
8/29/25  Agency PY2025 4th Quarter reports, CLC progress 

reports, and Annual Performance Measure Reports due. 
 
9/17/25                  Regular Board Meeting 

Draft Three Year Plan 2025-27 with 2025 Objectives  
Approve DRAFT FY 2026 Budgets 

6



 
9/24/25                  Joint Study Session with CCDDB 
 
10/22/25                Regular Board Meeting 

Draft Program Year 2027 Allocation Criteria  
 
10/29/25                Joint Meeting with CCDDB 

I/DD Special Initiatives 
 
10/31/25  Agency PY2026 First Quarter Reports due. 
 
11/19/25                 Regular Board Meeting  

Approve Three Year Plan with One Year Objectives 
Approve PY27 Allocation Criteria 

 
11/28/25  Public Notice of Funding Availability to be published by 
   date, giving at least 21-day notice of application period. 
 
12/17/25                Regular Board Meeting– tentative 
 
12/19/25   Online system opens for applications for PY27 funding. 
 
12/30/25   Agency Independent Audits, Reviews, Compilations due. 

7



1 
 

Agency and Program Acronyms 
AA- Alcoholics Anonymous 
AIR – Alliance for Inclusion and Respect (formerly Anti-Stigma Alliance) 
BLAST – Bulldogs Learning and Succeeding Together, at Mahomet Area Youth Club  
CC – Community Choices or Courage Connection 
CCCAC or CAC – (Champaign County) Children’s Advocacy Center  
CCCHC – Champaign County Christian Health Center 
CCDDB or DDB – Champaign County Developmental Disabilities Board 
CCHCC – Champaign County Health Care Consumers 
CCHS – Champaign County Head Start, a department of the Champaign County 
Regional Planning Commission (also CCHS-EHS, for Head Start-Early Head Start) 
CCMHB or MHB – Champaign County Mental Health Board 
CCRPC or RPC – Champaign County Regional Planning Commission 
CN - Crisis Nursery 
CSCNCC - Community Service Center of Northern Champaign County, also CSC 
CU TRI – CU Trauma & Resiliency Initiative 
Courage Connection – previously The Center for Women in Transition 
DMBGC - Don Moyer Boys & Girls Club 
DREAAM – Driven to Reach Excellence and Academic Achievement for Males 
DSC - Developmental Services Center 
ECHO – a program of Cunningham Children’s Home 
ECIRMAC or RAC – East Central Illinois Refugee Mutual Assistance Center or The 
Refugee Center 
ECMHS - Early Childhood Mental Health Services, a program of CCRPC Head Start  
FD – Family Development, previously Family Development Center, a DSC program 
FF - FirstFollowers 
FS - Family Service of Champaign County 
FST – Families Stronger Together, a program of Cunningham Children’s Home 
GCAP – Greater Community AIDS Project of East Central Illinois 
IAG – Individual Advocacy Group, Inc., a provider of I/DD services 
ISCU - Immigrant Services of Champaign-Urbana 
MAYC - Mahomet Area Youth Club 
NA- Narcotics Anonymous 
NAMI – National Alliance on Mental Illness 
PATH – regional provider of 211 information/call services 
PEARLS - Program to Encourage Active Rewarding Lives  
PHC – Promise Healthcare 
PSC - Psychological Services Center (UIUC) or Problem Solving Courts (Drug Court) 
RAC or ECIRMAC – East Central Illinois Refugee Mutual Assistance Center 
RACES – Rape Advocacy, Counseling, and Education Services 
RCI – Rosecrance Central Illinois 
RPC or CCRPC – Champaign County Regional Planning Commission 
UNCC – Urbana Neighborhood Community Connections Center 
UP Center – Uniting Pride 
UW or UWCC – United Way of Champaign County 
WIN Recovery – Women in Need Recovery 
YAC – Youth Assessment Center, a program of CCRPC 

8



2 
 

Glossary of Other Terms and Acronyms  
 
211 – Information and referral services call service 
 
988 – Suicide and Crisis Lifeline 
 
ABA – Applied Behavioral Analysis, an intensive behavioral intervention targeted to autistic 
children and youth and others with associated behaviors. 
 
ACA – Affordable Care Act 
 
ACEs – Adverse Childhood Experiences 
 
ACMHAI – Association of Community Mental Health Authorities of Illinois 
 
ACL – federal Administration for Community Living  
 
ACT- Acceptance Commitment Therapy 
 
ACT – Assertive Community Treatment 
 
ADD/ADHD – Attention Deficit Disorder/Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder 
 
ADL – Activities of Daily Living 
 
ALICE - Asset Limited, Income Constrained, Employed 
 
A/N – Abuse and Neglect 
 
ANSA – Adult Needs and Strengths Assessment 
 
APN – Advance Practice Nurse 
 
ARC – Attachment, Regulation, and Competency 
 
ARCH – Access to Respite Care and Help 
 
ARMS – Automated Records Management System. Information management system used by law 
enforcement.   
 
ASAM – American Society of Addiction Medicine.  May be referred to in regard to assessment 
and criteria for patient placement in level of treatment/care. 
 
ASD – Autism Spectrum Disorder 
 
ASL – American Sign Language 
 
ASQ – Ages and Stages Questionnaire.  Screening tool used to evaluate a child’s developmental 
and social emotional growth. 
 
ASQ-SE – Ages and Stages Questionnaire – Social Emotional screen. 

9



3 
 

 
ATOD – Alcohol, Tobacco, and Other Drugs 
 
BARJ - Balanced and Restorative Justice approach 
 
BD – Behavior Disorder 
 
BJMHS - Brief Jail Mental Health Screening Tool 
 
CADC – Certified Alcohol and Drug Counselor, substance abuse professional providing clinical 
services, having met certification requirements of the Illinois Alcoholism and Other Drug Abuse 
Professional Certification Association. 
 
CALAN or LAN – Child and Adolescent Local Area Network 
 
CANS – Child and Adolescent Needs and Strengths, a multi-purpose tool to support decision 
making, including level of care, service planning, and monitoring of outcomes of services.  
 
C-CARTS – Champaign County Area Rural Transit System 
 
CATS – Child and Adolescent Trauma Screen 
 
CBCL – Child Behavior Checklist 
 
CBT – Cognitive Behavioral Therapy 
 
CC – Champaign County 
 
CCBHC – Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinic 
 
CCBoH – Champaign County Board of Health 
 
CCHVC - Champaign County Home Visiting Consortium 
 
CCMHDDAC or MHDDAC – Champaign County Mental Health and Developmental Disabilities 
Agencies Council 
 
CCSO – Champaign County Sheriff's Office 
 
CDC – federal Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 
 
CDS – Community Day Services, day programming for adults with I/DD, previously 
Developmental Training 
 
CES – Coordinated Entry System 
 
CESSA – Community Emergency Services and Support Act, an Illinois law also referred to as the 
Stephon Watts Act, requiring mental health professionals be dispatched to certain crisis response. 
 
C-GAF – Children’s Global Assessment of Functioning 
 

10



4 
 

CGAS – Children’s Global Assessment Score 
 
CHW – Community Health Worker 
 
CILA – Community Integrated Living Arrangement, Medicaid-waiver funded residential services 
for people with I/DD 
 
CIT – Crisis Intervention Team; law enforcement officer trained to respond to calls involving an 
individual exhibiting behaviors associated with mental illness. 
 
CLC – Cultural and Linguistic Competence 
 
CLST – Casey Life Skills Tool 
 
CMS – federal Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services 
 
COC - Continuum of Care Program 
 
CQL – Council on Quality and Leadership 
 
CPTSD or c-PTSD – Complex Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder 
 
CRSS- Certified Recovery Support Specialist 
 
CRT – Co-Responder Team; mobile crisis response intervention coupling a CIT trained law 
enforcement officer with a mental health crisis worker. Also CCRT – Crisis Co-Responder Team. 
 
CSEs – Community Service Events, as described in a funded agency’s program plan, may include 
public events (including mass media and articles), consultations with community groups and/or 
caregivers, classroom presentations, and small group workshops to promote a program or educate 
the community.  Meetings directly related to planning such events may also be counted here. Actual 
direct service to clientele is counted elsewhere.  
 
CSPH – Continuum of Service Providers to the Homeless 
 
CSPI – Childhood Severity of Psychiatric Illness. A mental health assessment instrument 
 
CST – Community Support Team 
 
CY – Contract Year, July 1-June 30. Also Program Year (PY), most agencies’ Fiscal Year (FY)  
 
CYFS – Center for Youth and Family Solutions (formerly Catholic Charities) 
 
DASA – Division of Alcoholism and Substance Abuse in the Illinois Department of Human 
Services, renamed as IDSUPR or SUPR 
 
DBT -- Dialectical Behavior Therapy 
 
DCFS – Illinois Department of Children and Family Services 
 
DECA – Devereux Early Childhood Assessment for Preschoolers 

11



5 
 

 
DEI – Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion 
 
Detox – abbreviated reference to detoxification, a general reference to drug and alcohol 
detoxification program or services, e.g. Detox Program. 
 
DD – Developmental Disability 
 
DDD or IDHS DDD – Illinois Department of Human Services - Division of Developmental 
Disabilities 
 
DFI – Donated Funds Initiative, source of matching funds for some CCMHB funded contracts. The 
Illinois Department of Human Services administers the DFI Program funded with federal Title XX 
Social Services Block Grant. The DFI is a “match” program meaning community-based agencies 
must match the DFI funding with locally generated funds. The required local match is 25 percent 
of the total DFI award.  
 
DHFS – Illinois Department of Healthcare and Family Services, previously IDPA (Illinois 
Department of Public Aid) 
 
DHS – Illinois Department of Human Services 
 
DMH or IDHS DMH – Illinois Department of Human Services - Division of Mental Health 
 
DOJ – federal Department of Justice 
 
DSM – Diagnostic Statistical Manual 
 
DSP – Direct Support Professional, a certification required for those serving people with I/DD 
 
DT – Developmental Therapy (children), or Developmental Training (adults), now Community 
Day Services 
 
DV – Domestic Violence  
 
EAP – Employee Assistance Program 
 
EBP - Evidence Based Practice 
 
EHR – Electronic Health Record 
 
EI – Early Intervention 
 
EMS – Emergency Medical Services 
 
EPDS – Edinburgh Postnatal Depression Scale – Screening tool used to identify mothers with 
newborn children who may be at risk for prenatal depression. 
 
EPSDT – Early Periodic Screening Diagnosis and Treatment.  Intended to provide comprehensive 
and preventative health care services for children under age 21 who are enrolled in Medicaid. 
 

12



6 
 

ER – Emergency Room 
 
FACES – Family Adaptability and Cohesion Evaluation Scale 
 
FAST – Family Assessment Tool 
 
FFS – Fee for Service, reimbursement or performance-based billings are the basis of payment 
 
FOIA – Freedom of Information Act 
 
FPL – Federal Poverty Level 
 
FQHC – Federally Qualified Health Center 
 
FTE – Full Time Equivalent is the aggregated number of employees supported by the program.  
Can include employees providing direct services (Direct FTE) to clients and indirect employees 
such as supervisors or management (Indirect FTE). 
 
FY – Fiscal Year, which for the County is January 1 through December 31. 
 
GAAP - Generally Accepted Accounting Principles  
 
GAF – Global Assessment of Functioning. A subjective rating scale used by clinicians to rate a 
client’s level of social, occupational and psychological functioning.  The scale included in the 
DSM-IV has been replaced in the DSM-V by another instrument. 
 
GAGAS-Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards  
 
GAO-Government Accountability Office 
 
GAIN-Q – Global Appraisal of Individual Needs-Quick.  Is the most basic form of the assessment 
tool taking about 30 minutes to complete and consists of nine items that identify and estimate the 
severity of problems of the youth or adult.  
 
GAIN Short Screen - Global Appraisal of Individual Needs, is made up of 20 items (four five-item 
subscales). The GAIN-SS subscales identify internalizing disorders, externalizing disorders, 
substance use disorders, crime/violence.  
 
GSRC – Gender and Sexuality Resource Center   
 
GSA – Gender/Sexuality Alliances 
 
HACC – Housing Authority of Champaign County 
 
HBS – Home Based Support, a Medicaid-waiver program for people with I/DD 
 
HCBS – Home and Community Based Supports, a federal Medicaid program 
 
HEARTH Act – Homeless Emergency and Rapid Transition to Housing 
 
HFS or IDHFS – Illinois Department of Healthcare and Family Services 

13



7 
 

 
HHS – federal department of Health and Human Services 
 
HIC – Housing Inventory Counts 
 
HIPPA – Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act  
 
HMIS – Homeless Management Information System 
 
HRSA – Health Resources and Services Administration, housed within the federal Department of 
Health and Human Resources and responsible for Federally Qualified Health Centers. 
 
HSSC – Homeless Services System Coordination 
 
HUD – Housing and Urban Development 
 
I&R – Information and Referral 
 
ILAPSC – Illinois Association of Problem-Solving Courts 
 
ICADV – Illinois Coalition Against Domestic Violence 
 
ICASA – Illinois Coalition Against Sexual Assault 
 
ICDVP – Illinois Certified Domestic Violence Professional 
 
ICFDD – Intermediate Care Facility for the Developmentally Disabled 
 
ICJIA – Illinois Criminal Justice Authority 
 
ID or I/DD – Intellectual Disability or Intellectual/Developmental Disability 
 
IDHFS or HFS – Illinois Department of Healthcare and Family Services 
 
IDHS DDD or DDD – Illinois Department of Human Services Division of Developmental 
Disabilities 
 
IDHS DMH or DMH – Illinois Department of Human Services - Division of Mental Health 
 
IDOC – Illinois Department of Corrections 
 
IDSUPR or SUPR – Illinois Division of Substance Use Prevention & Recovery 
 
IECAM - Illinois Early Childhood Asset Map 
 
IEP – Individualized Education Plan 
 
I/ECMHC – Infant/Early Childhood Mental Health Consultation 
 
IGA – Intergovernmental Agreement 
 

14



8 
 

IM+CANS – The Illinois Medicaid Comprehensive Assessment of Needs and Strengths 
 
IOP – Intensive Outpatient Treatment 
 
IPLAN - Illinois Project for Local Assessment of Needs, a community health assessment and 
planning process that is conducted every five years by local health jurisdictions in Illinois. Based 
on the Assessment Protocol for Excellence in Public Health (APEX-PH) model, IPLAN is 
grounded in the core functions of public health and addresses public health practice standards. The 
completion of IPLAN fulfills most of the requirements for Local Health Department certification 
under Illinois Administrative Code Section 600.400: Certified Local Health Department Code 
Public Health Practice Standards. The essential elements of IPLAN are: 

1. an organizational capacity assessment; 
2. a community health needs assessment; and 
3. a community health plan, focusing on a minimum of three priority health problems. 

 
ISBE – Illinois State Board of Education 
 
ISC – Independent Service Coordination 
 
ISP – Individual Service Plan   
 
ISSA – Independent Service & Support Advocacy 
 
JDC – Juvenile Detention Center 
 
JJ – Juvenile Justice 
 
JJPD – Juvenile Justice Post Detention  
 
LAN – Local Area Network 
 
LCPC – Licensed Clinical Professional Counselor 
 
LCSW – Licensed Clinical Social Worker 
 
LGTBQ + – Lesbian, Gay, Bi-Sexual, Transgender, Queer, plus all the gender identities and sexual 
orientations that letters and words cannot yet fully describe. 
 
LIHEAP – Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program 
 
LPC – Licensed Professional Counselor 
 
LSA – Life Skills Assessment 
 
MAP – Matching to Appropriate Placement, a tool focused on those seeking stable housing 
 
MAR/MAT – Medication Assisted Recovery/Medication Assisted Treatment 
 
MBSR – Mindfulness-Based Stress Reduction 
 

15



9 
 

MCO – Managed Care Organization. Entity under contract with the state to manage healthcare 
services for persons enrolled in Medicaid. 
 
MCR – Mobile Crisis Response, previously SASS, a state program that provides crisis intervention 
for children and youth on Medicaid. 
 
MDT – Multi-Disciplinary Team 
 
MH – Mental Health 
 
MHFA – Mental Health First Aid  
 
MHDDAC or CCMHDDAC – Mental Health and Developmental Disabilities Agencies Council 
 
MHP – Mental Health Professional. Rule 132 term, typically referring to a bachelor’s level staff 
providing services under the supervision of a QMHP. 
 
MI – Mental Illness, also Mental Impairment 
 
MI – Motivational Interview 
 
MIDD – A dual diagnosis of Mental Illness and Developmental Disability. 
 
MISA – A dual diagnosis condition of Mental Illness and Substance Abuse 
 
MOU – Memorandum of Understanding 
 
MRT – Moral Reconation Therapy  
 
NACBHDD – National Association of County Behavioral Health and Developmental Disability 
Directors 
 
NACO – National Association of Counties 
 
NADCP – National Association of Drug Court Professionals 
 
NMT – Neurodevelopmental Model of Therapeutics 
 
NOFA – Notice of Funding Availability 
 
NOMS – National Outcome Measures (used by SAMHSA) 
 
NTPC – NON-Treatment Plan Clients, described in program plans, may be recipients of material 
assistance, non-responsive outreach cases, cases closed before a plan was written because the client 
did not want further service beyond first few contacts or cases assessed for another agency. 
Continuing NTPCs are those without treatment plans who were served before the first day of July 
and received services within the first quarter. New NTPCs are those new in a given quarter. 
 
NREPP – National Registry of Evidence-based Programs and Practices maintained by Substance 
Abuse Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA) 
 

16



10 
 

OCD – Obsessive-Compulsive Disorder 
 
ODD – Oppositional Defiant Disorder 
 
OMA – Open Meetings Act 
 
OP – Outpatient (treatment) 
 
OUD/SUD – Opioid Use Disorder/Substance Use Disorder 
 
PAS – Pre-Admission Screening 
 
PCI – Parent Child Interaction groups. 
 
PCP – Person Centered Planning 
 
PFS - Protective Factors Survey 
 
PIT- Point in Time count. A count of sheltered and unsheltered homeless persons carried out on 
one night in the last 10 calendar days of January or at such other time as required by HUD. 
 
PLAY – Play and Language for Autistic Youngsters. PLAY is an early intervention approach that 
teaches parents ways to interact with their child who has autism that promotes developmental 
progress. 
 
PLL – Parenting with Love and Limits. Evidence-based group/family therapy for youth/families 
involved in juvenile justice system. 
 
PLWHA – People living with HIV/AIDS 
 
PPSP – Parent Peer Support Partner 
 
PSH – Permanent Supportive Housing 
 
PSR – Patient Service Representative; staff position providing support services to patients and 
medical staff. 
 
PTSD – Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder 
 
PUNS – Prioritization of Urgency of Need for Services, a database implemented by IDHS to assist 
with planning and prioritization of services for individuals with disabilities based on level of need.  
 
PWD – People with Disabilities 
 
PWI – Personal Well-being Index 
 
PY – Program Year, July 1 to June 30. Also Contract Year (CY), often agency Fiscal Year (FY)   
 
QCPS – Quarter Cent for Public Safety. The funding source for the Juvenile Justice Post Detention 
programming.  May also be referred to as Quarter Cent. 
 

17



11 
 

QIDP – Qualified Intellectual Disabilities Professional 
 
QMHP – Qualified Mental Health Professional. Rule 132 term that, simply stated, refers to a 
Master’s level clinician with field experience who has been licensed.  
 
REBT -- Rational Emotive Behavior Therapy 
 
RFI – Request for Information 
 
RFP – Request for Proposals 
 
RTC – Residential Treatment Center  
 
SA – Sexual Assault. Also Substance Abuse  
 
SACIS – Sexual Assault Counseling and Information Service 
 
SAD – Seasonal Affective Disorder 
 
SAMHSA – Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, a division of the federal 
Department of Health and Human Services  
 
SASS – Screening Assessment and Support Services is a state program that provides crisis 
intervention for children and youth on Medicaid.  
 
SBIRT – Screening, Brief Intervention, Referral to Treatment. SAMHSA defines SBIRT as a 
comprehensive, integrated, public health approach to the delivery of early intervention and 
treatment services for persons with substance use disorders, as well as those who are at risk of 
developing these disorders. 
 
SCs – Service Contacts/Screening Contacts, an agency’s phone and face-to-face contacts, 
information and referral contacts, initial screenings/assessments, crisis services, or similar.  
 
SDOH – Social Determinants of Health 
 
SDQ – Strengths and Difficulties Questionnaire 
 
SDS – Service Documentation System 
 
Seeking Safety – present-focused treatment for clients with history of trauma and substance use 
 
SED – Serious Emotional Disturbance 
 
SEDS – Social Emotional Development Specialist 
 
SEL – Social Emotional Learning 
 
SIM – Sequential Intercept Mapping, a model developed by SAMHSA 
 
SMI – Serious Mental Illness 
 

18



12 
 

SNAP – Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program 
 
SOAR – SSI/SSDI Outreach, Access, and Recovery, assistance with applications for Social 
Security Disability and Supplemental Income, provided to homeless population. 
  
SSI – Supplemental Security Income, a program of Social Security 
 
SSDI – Social Security Disability Insurance, a program of Social Security 
 
SSPC – Social Skills and Prevention Coaches.  
 
SUD – Substance Use Disorder (replaces SA – Substance Abuse) 
 
SUPR or IDSUPR – (Illinois Division of) Substance Use Prevention & Recovery 
 
TANF – Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 
 
TBRA – Tenant-Based Rental Assistance 
 
TF-CBT – Trauma-Focused Cognitive Behavioral Therapy 
 
TPCs – Treatment Plan Clients, service participants with case records and treatment plans. 
Continuing TPCs are those with treatment plans who were served during the prior program year 
and then received services within the first quarter of the current program year. New TPCs have 
treatment plans written in a given quarter. Each TPC is reported only once during a program year. 

TPITOS - The Pyramid Infant-Toddler Observation Scale, used by Champaign County Head Start 

TPOT - Teaching Pyramid Observation Tool, used by Champaign County Head Start 

TCU DS - Texas University Drug Screening tool 

VAWA - Violence Against Women Act 

VOCA - Victims of Crime Act 

WHODAS – World Health Organization Disability Assessment Schedule, assessment instrument 
for health and disability, used across all diseases, including mental and addictive disorders.  

WIOA – Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act 

WIC – Women, Infants, and Children, A food assistance program for pregnant women, new 
mothers and young children eat well and stay healthy. 
 
WRAP – Wellness Recovery Action Plan, a manualized group intervention for adults that guides 
participants through identifying and understanding their personal wellness resources and helps 
them develop an individualized plan to use these resources daily to manage their mental illness. 
 
YASI – Youth Assessment and Screening Instrument, assesses risks, needs, and protective factors 
in youth, used in Champaign County by Youth Assessment Center and Juvenile Detention Center. 

19



 
 

DECISION MEMORANDUM 
DATE: April 30, 2025 
TO:  Members, Champaign County Mental Health Board (CCMHB) 
FROM: Lynn Canfield, Executive Director 
SUBJECT: Late Audits and Agency Requests for Board Consideration 
 
Purpose:  
 
CCMHB funding eligibility relies in part on a filed audit, financial review, 
or compilation report regarding an applicant’s most recently completed 
fiscal year and resolution of issues raised in that independent CPA report. As 
the Board reviews PY26 requests and considers requests related to delayed 
financial audits, this memorandum offers some historical details for context. 
 
Board members had asked that staff include contract compliance data in our 
review of PY26 funding requests. Some of those details are included in this 
memo, to support Board decisions about late audits. Anticipating agency 
requests for audit-related exceptions, we designed a form for them to use, 
with items for clarification. Five requests are attached to this memo. 
 
Independent audits help us understand how prior funds were used, the 
financial strengths and risks of each organization, and whether it is in a good 
position to manage new funding. The timing of audits is important because a 
number of Board and staff activities depend on the information in the audits 
as well as on the completion of all follow-up, which can be protracted if 
more information or explanation is needed. The process timeline, with 
various deadlines, was developed to help the Board fulfill its obligations 
under statute. Accountability across the system will also strengthen the 
mental health, substance use disorder, and developmental disabilities 
services available to residents of Champaign County. 
 
Board decisions may be complicated by public health emergencies, natural 
disasters, changes in federal or state systems, or the workforce capacity of 
other industries. For example, we have learned that a local CPA firm which 
performs audits for non-profit agencies will discontinue the service. 

20



Statutory Authority and Funding Requirements:  
 
The Board exercises its responsibilities and authorities as described in the 
Community Mental Health Act, 405 ILCS 20/0.1-13, which incorporates 
Illinois Department of Human Services Administrative Rules and the Illinois 
Administrative Procedure Act. Section 5-30 of the latter details “Regulatory 
Flexibility” through which rules may be established or amended to reduce 
the burden on small businesses or non-profit organizations. Case by case 
consideration has been given, due to the nature of publicly funded services 
and the chaotic context in which they operate. 
 
The CCMHB Funding Requirements and Guidelines are based on these laws 
and are agreed to at submission of each request for funding and at the 
execution of each contract. Financial Management and Reporting 
Requirements are referenced on pages 5-7 and 11, Non-Compliance and 
Appeals Processes pages 13-15, Extension Requests pages 12 and 19, Audit 
and Financial Accountability Requirements pages 15-19.  
 
In the event an audit/review which was initially due by December 31 is not 
received by March 31, the CCMHB must consider contract cancellation(s). 
If the Board agrees to continue contracts, they might add conditions, as 
discussed in prior meetings, which could be developed as special provisions 
for contracts with agencies continuing to experience delays. 
 
 

Agency Financial Audit/Review Updates:  
 
Of the nine agencies with audits or reviews due but not filed by December 
31, 2024, and a tenth with audit due but not filed by June 30, 2024: 
 Six have shared the audit/review and completed all follow-up - CU 

Early, Courage Connection, ECIRMAC (The Refugee Center), Family 
Service, Promise Healthcare, and Terrapin Station Sober Living. 
o Of the above, three have PY2026 funding requests and are eligible 

for funding – ECIRMAC, Family Service, and Promise. 
o Of the above, two have PY25-PY26 contracts and are eligible for 

continued funding – CU Early and Courage Connection. 
o Of the above, one has discontinued services but remains eligible 

for future funding – Terrapin. 

21

https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=1499
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=1499
https://www.dhs.state.il.us/page.aspx?item=22450
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs5.asp?ActID=83
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs5.asp?ActID=83
https://www.champaigncountyil.gov/mhbddb/PDFS/CCMHB%20Funding%20Requirements%20and%20Guidelines.pdf


o No related actions are needed, but details are included in this 
memo to improve PY26 contracts or inform system-wide solutions. 

 Four have not shared the audit/review and completed follow-up by 
the end of the grace period (March 31, 2025) - Champaign County 
Christian Health Center, FirstFollowers, Immigrant Services of CU, 
and WIN Recovery - and one additional currently non-funded agency 
that applied for PY26 funding is missing the same - Urbana 
Neighborhood Connections Center, Inc. 
o Of the above, two have PY25 contracts and have requested 

funding for PY26 – Champaign County Christian Health Center 
and WIN Recovery. 

o Of the above, one has two PY25-PY26 contracts – FirstFollowers. 
o Of the above, one has requested funding for PY26 but does not 

have a PY25 contract – Immigrant Services of CU. 
o Of the above, one does not have a PY25 contract or owe an audit 

pursuant to a PY24 contract, but the most recent audit is required 
as part of the application for PY26 funding – Urbana 
Neighborhood Connections Center, Inc. 

o Because full eligibility relies on a recent audit/review, there is a 
need for Board attention. Each agency has provided information in 
support of their requests for consideration, which are attached.  
 

 
History of Delays:  
 
RESOLVED - Courage Connection 
PY24 audit was due 12/31/24 and received 2/18/25 (49 days late.) 
PY23 was due 12/31/23, received 2/6/24 (37 days late.) 
PY22 audit was on time. 
PY21 audit was due 12/31/21, received 1/20/22 (20 days late.) 
The PY25 contract was not fully executed until 10/4/24 because the agency 
was delayed in making required revisions; the start date remained as 7/1/24. 
The agency has not shared its approved board meeting minutes with MHB 
staff on a regular basis. These would aid our understanding of audit progress 
and other issues impacting the agency’s status. 

 
RESOLVED - CU Early 
PY24 audit was due 12/31/24, received 1/8/25 and resubmitted 1/21/25 (21 
days late) with required supplemental reports and checklist initially not 

22



included. This was the first audit required. It is included in a larger 
organization’s combined audit, and their financial staff and CPA firm are 
now familiar with MHB requirements. 

 
RESOLVED - ECIRMAC (The Refugee Center)  
PY24 audit was due 12/31/24, received 1/30/25 (30 days late.) 
PY23 audit was due 12/31/23, received 3/25/24 (84 days late.) 
PY22 audit was due 12/31/22, received 3/31/23 (89 days late.) 
PY21 audit was due 12/31/21, received 3/2/22 (61 days late.) 
Payments were paused briefly due to late PY25 quarterly reports. 
 
RESOLVED - Family Service of Champaign County 
PY24 audit was due 12/31/24, received 2/5/25 (36 days late,) delayed due to 
revision of internal policies and financial services. 
PY23 audit was due 12/31/23, received 1/2/24 (2 days late.)  
 
RESOLVED - Promise Healthcare does not have an outstanding audit but 
has a different deadline and a history of delays. Because the agency uses a 
January 1 – December 31 fiscal year, their 2024 audit will be due on or 
before June 30, 2025. At the end of March, their CPA firm had all of the 
materials to begin this audit. 
2023 audit was due 6/30/24 and received 9/27/24 (89 days late,) with delays 
related to financial staff turnover. 
2022 was due 6/30/23 and received 5/10/24 (315 days late.) 
2021 was due 6/30/22 and received 12/16/22 (183 days late.) 
2020 was due 6/30/21 and received sometime during 10/21 (>93 days late.) 
Some quarterly financial reports for Program Year 2023 were revised after 
the fact, with information gained during the audit. Payments were paused in 
February 2023 due to late financial variance reporting. 

 
RESOLVED – Terrapin Station Sober Living 
PY24 financial review was shared on 2/7/25 (38 days late,) when MHB staff 
and Terrapin board and staff discussed feasibility of continuing the contract. 
PY23 financial review was on time. 
PY22 review was due 12/31/22, received 1/30/23 (30 days late.) 
PY24 Q2 reports were 3 days late; the director typically requested extra time 
if needed or completed any late reports within a few days.  

 
Champaign County Christian Health Center 
PY24 audit was not completed, approved, and shared by March 31.  

23



PY23 audit was due 12/31/23, received 3/25/24 (85 days late.) 
PY22 review was due 12/31/22, received 1/5/23 (5 days late.) 
PY21 review was due 12/31/21, received 5/11/22 (131 days late.) 
The agency has not shared its approved board meeting minutes with MHB 
staff on a regular basis. These would aid our understanding of audit progress 
and other issues impacting the agency’s status.  
 
FirstFollowers 
PY24 audit was not completed, approved, and shared by March 31. 
PY23 audit was due 12/31/23, initially received 1/4/24, and revised/ 
resubmitted 5/3/24 (124 days late.) 
PY22 audit was due 12/31/22, received 3/21/23 (80 days late.) 
PY21 audit was due 12/31/21, received 3/9/22 (68 days late.) 
 
Immigrant Services of CU presented information on the audit delay at a 
prior Board meeting. This PY24 contract requirement may have been 
overlooked due to turnover in leadership. The large donation which shifted 
the requirement from financial review to audit also introduces the possibility 
that more money than initially indicated could be owed back due to the 
payer of last resort provision; this can’t be determined until after the audit is 
received. The PY24 audit is required both to fulfill the terms of their prior 
contract and for the PY26 funding request to be eligible for consideration. 
 
Urbana Neighborhood Connections Center, Inc. 
The agency had been funded by the CCMHB for several years. While not 
funded in PY24, that audit will support the PY26 funding request. 
PY23 audit was due 12/31/23 and received 2/6/25 (403 days late.) 
PY22 audit was due 12/31/22 and received 6/30/23 (180 days late.)  
To transition from a January 1-start fiscal year to a July 1-start fiscal year, 
they completed a six-month audit for January 1 to June 30, 2021, which was 
due 12/31/21 and dated 9/12/22 (254 days late.) 
Quarterly reports were delayed for PY21 Q4, PY22 Q1 and Q3, and PY23. 
Payments were paused twice in PY23, but the new director requested extra 
time for the other two quarters. 
At times, the agency had not sent their approved meeting minutes, but the 
new director set up a system in PY23. 
 
Women in Need (WIN) Recovery 
PY24 audit was not completed, approved, and shared by March 31.  
PY23 audit was due 12/31/23, received 4/24/24 (115 days late.) 

24



PY22 review was due 12/31/22, received 7/7/23 (188 days late.) 
The agency typically requests extensions for quarterly reports, which 
prevents payment suspension. For Q3 PY24 they did not request an 
extension but submitted reports within 4 days of the deadline.  
The agency has not shared its approved board meeting minutes with MHB 
staff on a regular basis. These would aid our understanding of audit progress 
and other issues impacting the agency’s status. If their member who resides 
in Champaign County were to leave the agency board, a local representative 
would be needed to maintain CCMHB funding eligibility. 
  
 
Next Steps:  
 
The Board could make decisions at this time, since deadlines for audits 
(December 31), applications (February 10), and extensions (March 31) have 
passed. The combinations of options for action are identified below.  
 
Deferring actions on all or some of the requests is another option, either by 
deferring to a specific future date or by deferring each decision until the 
agency’s individual audit has been received and all issues addressed. 
 
Separately from Board action in response to the current requests, the Board 
might direct its staff to seek input from agencies toward a solution the 
Board could support and to propose this solution at a future meeting. Given 
the data on delays per year and the likely causes (small staff, difficulty 
securing CPA services, lack of internal control policies,) the agencies’ 
knowledge and experience will be the most helpful.  
 
Specific Agency Exception Requests:  
 
In each case, if the Board chooses to consider a PY26 funding request 
without a PY24 audit, this is not a commitment to fund. The decision on 
whether to award requests will be made at a later meeting. 
 
Champaign County Christian Health Center has a PY25 contract with 
the MHB, for $33,000, subject to cancellation due to no PY24 audit by 
March 31. The Board may decide whether to continue or cancel that 
contract, for which payments have been paused. The Board may also 

25



decide whether the request for PY26 funding of $100,000 should be 
considered, since the PY24 audit was needed to establish eligibility.  
 
FirstFollowers has two PY25-PY26 contracts with the MHB, for $69,500 
and $95,000, subject to cancellation due to no PY24 audit by March 31. 
The Board may decide whether to continue or cancel those contracts, for 
which payments have been paused, and whether to release payments 
without the audit. Because this is the only agency with two-year contracts 
subject to cancellation, the Board may make separate decisions for PY25 
and PY26, since the PY24 audit was needed to establish eligibility. 
 
Immigrant Services of CU submitted a PY26 funding request for 
$200,256. The Board may decide whether the funding request should be 
considered, since the PY24 audit was needed to establish eligibility.  
 
Urbana Neighborhood Connections Center, Inc. submitted a PY26 
funding request for $382,180. The Board may decide whether the funding 
request should be considered, since the PY24 audit was needed to 
establish eligibility.  
 
Women in Need (WIN) Recovery has a PY25 contract with the MHB, 
for $183,000, subject to cancellation due to no PY24 audit as of March 
31. The Board may decide whether to continue or cancel that contract, for 
which payments have been paused. The Board may also decide whether 
the submitted requests for PY26 funding, for $183,000 and $270,000, 
should be considered, since the PY24 audit was needed to establish 
eligibility.  
 
 

Possible Board Actions:  
 
1. Cancel all PY25 contracts of agencies with late audits; consider no PY26 

funding requests of agencies with late audits. 
2. Cancel some PY25 contracts of agencies with late audits but not all; 

consider no PY26 funding requests of agencies with late audits. 
3. Cancel no PY25 contracts of agencies with late audits; consider no PY26 

funding requests of agencies with late audits. 
4. Cancel all PY25 contracts of agencies with late audits; consider some 

PY26 funding requests of agencies with late audits but not all. 

26



5. Cancel some PY25 contracts of agencies with late audits but not all; 
consider some PY26 funding requests of agencies with late audits but not 
all. 

6. Cancel no PY25 contracts of agencies with late audits; consider some 
PY26 funding requests of agencies with late audits but not all. 

7. Cancel all PY25 contracts of agencies with late audits; consider all PY26 
funding requests of agencies with late audits. 

8. Cancel some PY25 contracts of agencies with late audits but not all; 
consider all PY26 funding requests of agencies with late audits. 

9. Cancel no PY25 contracts of agencies with late audits; consider all PY26 
funding requests of agencies with late audits. Depending on the final 
allocation decisions made in May or June, this scenario could result 
in committing more money to PY2026 contracts than appears to be 
affordable at this time. 

10. Defer until [specific date] all decisions related to audits which were not 
completed by March 31, 2025. 

11. Defer until [specific date] some decisions related to audits which were 
not completed by March 31, 2025; choose one of the options 1-9 for the 
other contracts/funding requests. 
 

Options 1,3, 7, 9, and 10 could be exercised by single motions applying to 
the full set of agencies. Other options require individual decisions, some 
of which might be as follows:  
____________________________________________________________ 
Motion to continue the Champaign County Christian Health Center 
PY2025 contract, withholding payments until the PY2024 audit is 
submitted and any follow-up issues resolved.  

OR 
Motion to cancel the Champaign County Christian Health Center 
PY2025 contract as of March 31, 2025, releasing the January, February, 
and March payments after the PY2024 audit is submitted and any follow-
up issues resolved.  

OR 
Motion to defer a decision on whether to continue or cancel the 
Champaign County Christian Health Center PY2025 contract as of 
March 31, 2025, until the PY2024 audit report has been filed and any 
related follow-up issues resolved. (OR set a specific date or extended 
deadline.) 

AND 

27



Motion to consider the Champaign County Christian Health Center 
PY2026 funding request without the PY2024 audit. 

OR 
Motion to deny consideration of the Champaign County Christian 
Health Center PY2026 funding request due to no PY2024 audit. 

OR 
Motion to defer consideration of the Champaign County Christian 
Health Center PY2026 funding request until the PY2024 audit report has 
been filed and any related follow-up issues resolved. (OR set a specific 
date or extended deadline.) 
____________________________________________________________ 
Motion to continue the FirstFollowers PY2025-2026 contracts, 
withholding payments until the PY2024 audit is submitted and any 
follow-up issues resolved.  

OR 
Motion to cancel the FirstFollowers PY2025-2026 contracts as of March 
31, 2025, releasing the January, February, and March payments after the 
PY2024 audit is submitted and any follow-up issues resolved.  

OR 
Motion to defer a decision on whether to continue or cancel the 
FirstFollowers PY2025-2026 contracts as of March 31, 2025, until the 
PY2024 audit report has been filed and any related follow-up issues 
resolved. (OR set a specific date or extended deadline.) 

AND 
Motion to restore or continue the FirstFollowers PY2025-2026 
contracts for PY2026 without the PY2024 audit. 

OR 
Motion to cancel the FirstFollowers PY2025-2026 contracts for PY2026 
due to no PY2024 audit. 

OR 
Motion to defer consideration of restoring or continuing the 
FirstFollowers PY2025-2026 contracts in PY2026 until the PY2024 audit 
report has been filed and any related follow-up issues resolved. (OR set a 
specific date or extended deadline.) 
____________________________________________________________ 
Motion to consider the Immigrant Services of CU PY2026 funding 
request without the PY2024 audit. 

OR 
Motion to deny consideration of the Immigrant Services of CU PY2026 
funding request due to no PY2024 audit. 

28



OR 
Motion to defer consideration of the Immigrant Services of CU PY2026 
funding request until the PY2024 audit report has been filed and any 
related follow-up issues resolved. (OR set a specific date or extended 
deadline.) 
____________________________________________________________ 
Motion to consider the Urbana Neighborhood Connections Center 
PY2026 funding request without the PY2024 audit. 

OR 
Motion to deny consideration of the Urbana Neighborhood Connections 
Center PY2026 funding request due to no PY2024 audit. 

OR 
Motion to defer consideration of the Urbana Neighborhood 
Connections Center PY2026 funding request until the PY2024 audit 
report has been filed and any related follow-up issues resolved. (OR set a 
specific date or extended deadline.) 
____________________________________________________________ 
Motion to continue the WIN Recovery PY2025 contract, withholding 
payments until the PY2024 audit is submitted and any follow-up issues 
resolved.  

OR 
Motion to cancel the WIN Recovery PY2025 contract as of March 31, 
2025, releasing the January, February, and March payments after the 
PY2024 audit is submitted and any follow-up issues resolved. 

OR 
Motion to defer a decision on whether to continue or cancel the WIN 
Recovery PY2025 contract as of March 31, 2025, until the PY2024 audit 
report has been filed and any related follow-up issues resolved. (OR set a 
specific date or extended deadline.) 

AND 
Motion to consider the WIN Recovery PY2026 funding requests without 
the PY2024 audit. 

OR 
Motion to deny consideration of the WIN Recovery PY2026 funding 
requests due to no PY2024 audit. 

OR 
Motion to defer consideration of the WIN Recovery PY2026 funding 
requests until the PY2024 audit report has been filed and any related 
follow-up issues resolved. (OR set a specific date or extended deadline.) 

29



 

Special Request for Consideration by CCDDB or CCMHB 
 
Complete and direct to stephanie@ccmhb.org and either kim@ccmhb.org or leon@ccmhb.org. 
Full Board approval is needed for certain exceptions to requirements and to reverse actions taken by the 
CCDDB- CCMHB staff. The completed request form will be presented to the CCDDB or CCMHB at a meeting. 

 
Requester’s Name: Jeffrey Trask  
 
Date: 4/12/25 
 
Agency Name: Champaign County Christian Health Center (CCCHC)  
 
Contract(s):       

Step One: Identify the type of special consideration requested. 
 

 Consideration of Late Funding Request 
 Release of Paused Payment(s) 
 Continuation of Contract(s) 
 Reversal of Other Compliance Action 
 Waiver of Other Contract Requirement 
 Other 

 
Step Two: Describe the circumstances necessitating this request. 
There was difficulty locating a reasonably priced audit (local firms were quoting 30-35K). 

After doing an in-depth search, we found a firm in Chicago that also did work in Urbana 
Champaign. After identifying the audit firm, there were several obstacles to overcome to get 
things completed. One, the firm that did CCCHC's previous financial reviews, had staffing 
changes and were difficult to connect with. Two, auditors have extremely busy times and 
each step of the process took time. Last, this was CCCHC's first audit (only had financial 
reviews in the past) so the whole process was a new experience for the organization. 
 

 
Step Three: Identify a solution to be implemented to avoid this circumstance in the future. 
Thankfully, now that we connected with this firm, we can stay with them (they do audits for 
both the City of Urbana and Champaign). We can sync our audits with the cities. Now that 
we went through our first audit, we now know what to expect in the future and will use 
recommendations from this audit to help prep for the next. 
 
 

30

mailto:stephanie@ccmhb.org
mailto:kim@ccmhb.org
mailto:leon@ccmhb.org


 

Step Four: Attach documentation which will clarify the situation, including documentation 
from your CPA firm, if related to the annual audit or financial review. 

 

 
Step Five: Attend a meeting of the full Board, preferably in person, to answer questions. 

31



 

Special Request for Consideration by CCDDB or CCMHB 
 
Complete and direct to stephanie@ccmhb.org and either kim@ccmhb.org or leon@ccmhb.org. 
Full Board approval is needed for certain exceptions to requirements and to reverse actions taken by the 
CCDDB- CCMHB staff. The completed request form will be presented to the CCDDB or CCMHB at a meeting. 

 
Requester’s Name: Mental Health Board  
 
Date: 4/18/25 
 
Agency Name: FirstFollowers  
 
Contract(s): Peer Mentoring & FirstSteps Transition Housing 

Step One: Identify the type of special consideration requested. 
 

 Consideration of Late Funding Request 
 Release of Paused Payment(s) 
 Continuation of Contract(s) 
 Reversal of Other Compliance Action 
 Waiver of Other Contract Requirement 
 Other 

 
Step Two: Describe the circumstances necessitating this request. 
The deadline to submit our annual audit has passed. The process of completing the audit 

has taken longer than we had anticipated. Some of the delay is because the audit includes a 
single audit per federal guidelines. This particular process includes more documents to be 
gathered, submitted, and reviewed. We received a draft audit report last Friday (4/11/25), 
and we met with the auditors Tuesday (4/15/35) to discuss our responses to the draft report. 
Other documents were requested for further review, and we have submitted those. Per the 
auditor, the audit should be finalized next week (4/20/25 - 4/24/25). 
 

 
Step Three: Identify a solution to be implemented to avoid this circumstance in the future. 
We have learned from this process that we have to begin preparing documentation sooner 
and have them readily available for the auditor. We also have a better idea of what to expect 
from a single audit. 
 
 

32

mailto:stephanie@ccmhb.org
mailto:kim@ccmhb.org
mailto:leon@ccmhb.org


 

Step Four: Attach documentation which will clarify the situation, including documentation 
from your CPA firm, if related to the annual audit or financial review. 

 

 
Step Five: Attend a meeting of the full Board, preferably in person, to answer questions. 

33



RE: [External] Requested Documents

From: Shipp, Megan (megan.shipp@claconnect.com)

To: marlonmitchell@sbcglobal.net; katie.bermingham@claconnect.com

Cc: jjincu@gmail.com; shanelle@kellysaccounting.com

Date: Thursday, April 17, 2025 at 12:05 PM CDT

Thank you, Marlon!
 
Everything looks good on that now 😊
 
Once we get the responses to the findings we will be able to send this to the last level of our review!

Thanks!
Megan
 

Megan Shipp, CPA
Senior

Direct 217-373-3113
CLA (CliftonLarsonAllen LLP)
megan.shipp@claconnect.com

CLA (CliftonLarsonAllen LLP) is an independent network member of CLA Global. See CLAglobal.com/disclaimer. Investment
advisory services are offered through CliftonLarsonAllen Wealth Advisors, LLC, an SEC-registered investment advisor.

 

From: Marlon Mitchell <marlonmitchell@sbcglobal.net>
Sent: Thursday, April 17, 2025 11:41 AM
To: Bermingham, Katie <Katie.Bermingham@claconnect.com>; Shipp, Megan
<Megan.Shipp@claconnect.com>
Cc: Kilgore, James <jjincu@gmail.com>; Shanelle Herman <Shanelle@kellysaccounting.com>
Subject: Re: [External] Requested Documents

 

Think Security – This email originated from an external source.  Be cautious with any links or attachments.

Ooops...moving too fast!

 

On Thursday, April 17, 2025 at 11:23:38 AM CDT, Shipp, Megan <megan.shipp@claconnect.com> wrote:

 

 

Hi Marlon,
 
Would you be able to email me the updated report?

Thanks!
Megan
 

4/18/25, 1:40 PM AT&T Yahoo Mail - RE: [External] Requested Documents

about:blank 1/3
34

mailto:megan.shipp@claconnect.com
https://www.claglobal.com/legal-disclaimer/
mailto:megan.shipp@claconnect.com


Megan Shipp, CPA
Senior

Direct 217-373-3113
CLA (CliftonLarsonAllen LLP)
megan.shipp@claconnect.com

CLA (CliftonLarsonAllen LLP) is an independent network member of CLA Global. See CLAglobal.com/disclaimer. Investment
advisory services are offered through CliftonLarsonAllen Wealth Advisors, LLC, an SEC-registered investment advisor.

 
From: Marlon Mitchell <marlonmitchell@sbcglobal.net>
Sent: Thursday, April 17, 2025 11:23 AM
To: Bermingham, Katie <Katie.Bermingham@claconnect.com>; Shipp, Megan
<Megan.Shipp@claconnect.com>
Cc: Kilgore, James <jjincu@gmail.com>; Shanelle Herman <Shanelle@kellysaccounting.com>
Subject: Re: [External] Requested Documents
 

Think Security – This email originated from an external source.  Be cautious with any links or attachments.

Hi Megan,
 
The CYEFR has been updated to reflect your figures. Please let me know if you further questions, thanks.
 
Marlon
 
On Thursday, April 17, 2025 at 08:21:44 AM CDT, Shipp, Megan <megan.shipp@claconnect.com> wrote:
 
 
Hi Marlon,
 
Please see pgs. 4, 5, and 7 for changes that I think are needed for the CYEFR to agree to the reports
that we were given.
 
I attached the Excel reports I was tying to as well!

Megan
 

Megan Shipp, CPA
Senior

Direct 217-373-3113
CLA (CliftonLarsonAllen LLP)
megan.shipp@claconnect.com

CLA (CliftonLarsonAllen LLP) is an independent network member of CLA Global. See CLAglobal.com/disclaimer. Investment
advisory services are offered through CliftonLarsonAllen Wealth Advisors, LLC, an SEC-registered investment advisor.

 
From: Marlon Mitchell <marlonmitchell@sbcglobal.net>
Sent: Wednesday, April 16, 2025 5:47 PM
To: Shipp, Megan <Megan.Shipp@claconnect.com>; Bermingham, Katie
<Katie.Bermingham@claconnect.com>
Cc: Kilgore, James <jjincu@gmail.com>; Shanelle Herman <Shanelle@kellysaccounting.com>
Subject: [External] Requested Documents
 

Think Security – This email originated from an external source.  Be cautious with any links or attachments.

Megan/Katie,
 
Attached you will find the requested documents which include the board minutes from December, January, and
March. February's board meeting was canceled. The attachments also include the corrected CEFYR form. Please
let me know if you have questions.

4/18/25, 1:40 PM AT&T Yahoo Mail - RE: [External] Requested Documents

about:blank 2/3
35

mailto:megan.shipp@claconnect.com
https://www.claglobal.com/legal-disclaimer/
mailto:marlonmitchell@sbcglobal.net
mailto:Katie.Bermingham@claconnect.com
mailto:Megan.Shipp@claconnect.com
mailto:jjincu@gmail.com
mailto:Shanelle@kellysaccounting.com
mailto:megan.shipp@claconnect.com
mailto:megan.shipp@claconnect.com
https://www.claglobal.com/legal-disclaimer/
mailto:marlonmitchell@sbcglobal.net
mailto:Megan.Shipp@claconnect.com
mailto:Katie.Bermingham@claconnect.com
mailto:jjincu@gmail.com
mailto:Shanelle@kellysaccounting.com


 
Shanelle will send you the responses to the audit in a following email. Thanks.
 
Marlon

 

----------------------------

The information (including any attachments) contained in this document is confidential and is for the use
only of the intended recipient. If you are not the intended recipient, you should delete this message. Any
distribution, disclosure, or copying of this message, or the taking of any action based on its contents is
strictly prohibited.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

 

----------------------------

 

4/18/25, 1:40 PM AT&T Yahoo Mail - RE: [External] Requested Documents

about:blank 3/3
36



RE: [External] Updated Audit Responses

From: Bermingham, Katie (katie.bermingham@claconnect.com)

To: shanelle@kellysaccounting.com; megan.shipp@claconnect.com; marlonmitchell@sbcglobal.net

Date: Saturday, April 19, 2025 at 06:46 AM CDT

Received, thank you!
 
Yes, I’ll get these into the final reports and our final reviewer just has to review them and then I’ll send the
final management representation letter.
 
Have a nice weekend!
 
Katie
 

Katie Bermingham, CPA
Principal

Direct 217-373-3144
CLA (CliftonLarsonAllen LLP)
katie.bermingham@claconnect.com

CLA (CliftonLarsonAllen LLP) is an independent network member of CLA Global. See CLAglobal.com/disclaimer. Investment
advisory services are offered through CliftonLarsonAllen Wealth Advisors, LLC, an SEC-registered investment advisor.

 

From: Shanelle Herman <Shanelle@kellysaccounting.com>
Sent: Saturday, April 19, 2025 12:09 AM
To: Bermingham, Katie <Katie.Bermingham@claconnect.com>; Shipp, Megan
<Megan.Shipp@claconnect.com>; Mitchell, Marlon <marlonmitchell@sbcglobal.net>
Subject: [External] Updated Audit Responses

 

Think Security – This email originated from an external source.  Be cautious with any links or attachments.

Please see the updated audit responses attached.  I believe this in the final piece, but let me know if
anything else is needed.

 

Enjoy your holiday weekend!

 

Shanelle

 

 

----------------------------

The information (including any attachments) contained in this document is confidential and is for the use only

4/21/25, 7:22 AM AT&T Yahoo Mail - RE: [External] Updated Audit Responses

about:blank 1/2
37

mailto:katie.bermingham@claconnect.com
https://www.claglobal.com/legal-disclaimer/


of the intended recipient. If you are not the intended recipient, you should delete this message. Any distribution,
disclosure, or copying of this message, or the taking of any action based on its contents is strictly prohibited.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

 

----------------------------

 

4/21/25, 7:22 AM AT&T Yahoo Mail - RE: [External] Updated Audit Responses

about:blank 2/2
38



 

Special Request for Consideration by CCDDB or CCMHB 
 
Complete and direct to stephanie@ccmhb.org and either kim@ccmhb.org or leon@ccmhb.org. 
Full Board approval is needed for certain exceptions to requirements and to reverse actions taken by the 
CCDDB- CCMHB staff. The completed request form will be presented to the CCDDB or CCMHB at a meeting. 

 
Requester’s Name:     Maria Jimenez  
 
Date:                   04/14/2025 
 
Agency Name:   Immigrant Services of Champaign-Urbana     
 
Contract(s):      Pending PY 26 

Step One: Identify the type of special consideration requested. 
 

☐ Consideration of Late Funding Request 

☐ Release of Paused Payment(s) 

☐ Continuation of Contract(s) 

☐ Reversal of Other Compliance Action 

☐ Waiver of Other Contract Requirement 

☐ Other 
 

Step Two: Describe the circumstances necessitating this request. 
   ISCU received an unexpected $350,000 donation in June 2024. Prior to this donation, we 

were only required to complete a financial review. However, the donation changed our threshold, 
triggering the need for a full audit. Unfortunately, this oversight wasn’t identified until after we 
completed our final report. Since the need for an audit arose late in the fiscal year and during tax 
season, it was challenging to secure an auditor on such short notice. 

 
Step Three: Identify a solution to be implemented to avoid this circumstance in the future. 
To prevent this from happening again, we plan to continue working with both Mike Coffman 
and Kelly’s Accounting each year to follow the same audit and reconciliation process. We’ve 
also set up a shared calendar for staff to help us keep track of important financial deadlines, stay 
on top of where we stand throughout the year financially, and make sure everything is completed 
on time. These steps will help us stay ahead of any audit requirements and avoid any last-minute 
surprises despite fluctuations. 
    

39

mailto:stephanie@ccmhb.org
mailto:kim@ccmhb.org
mailto:leon@ccmhb.org
mailto:leon@ccmhb.org


 

 

Step Four: Attach documentation which will clarify the situation, including documentation 
from your CPA firm, if related to the annual audit or financial review. 
 We have secured Mike Coffman to conduct the audit, which is scheduled to begin on May 1, 
2025, with an expected completion date of May 30. In preparation, Kelly’s Accounting will 
complete the necessary account reconciliation by April 30. They began work on April 16, 
immediately after the tax deadline. Attached, you will find a letter of engagement from Mike 
Coffman. 

 

 
Step Five: Attend a meeting of the full Board, preferably in person, to answer questions. 
 
On February 19, 2025, David Dorman (Board President) and María Jiménez (Executive 
Director) attended the CCMHB board meeting in person. We explained our situation, 
acknowledged the oversight, and asked the board to work with us as we move forward. We also 
emphasized that this is a critical time for immigrants in our community, and the mental health 
and well-being of our clients remains our top priority. 

40



41



42



43



  Board President
  January 20, 2025

44



Special Request for Consideration by CCDDB or CCMHB 

Complete and direct to stephanie@ccmhb.org and either kim@ccmhb.org or leon@ccmhb.org. 
Full Board approval is needed for certain exceptions to requirements and to reverse actions taken by the 
CCDDB- CCMHB staff. The completed request form will be presented to the CCDDB or CCMHB at a meeting. 

Requester's Name: Dr. Jeniece D. Mitchell 

Date: 04/11/2025 

A,:encv Name: Urbana Neighborhood Connections Center 

Contract(s): FY26 

Step One: Identify the type of special consideration requested. 

D Consideration of Late Funding Request 

D Release of Paused Payment(s) 

D Continuation of Contract( s) 

D Reversal of Other Compliance Action 

C2J Waiver of Other Contract Requirement 

D Other 

Step Two: Describe the circumstances necessitating this request. 

Urbana Neighborhood Connections Center has submitted an application for funding to 

support our fiscal year 2026 youth programming. Due to significant challenges with delayed 

communication amongst other issues with our previous auditor in Springfield, Illinois, we 

received our 2023 audit in November of 2024. The UNCC Executive Director and Board of 

Directors have since been actively searching for a new, reputable, affordable CPA firm to 

complete our 2024 audit. As of a notice we received on April 9th, we have been up against an 

April 15th deadline for getting an engagement letter for some granting entities. Most CPA 

firms have told our E.D. that this request could not be filled until the week after April 15th

when all of their clients' filings would be done. Many of the local tax and financial 

companies do not provide auditing as a service and those that do have not been able to take 

on new clients to complete our latest audit within the timeframe that outside organizations 

have requested, due to having an overwhelming amount of current clients. 

Step Three: Identify a solution to be implemented to avoid this circumstance in the future. 

My mother Janice Mitchell, the founder ofUNCC and a tireless community servant-leader 

45



told me to do years ago II Niece do whatever you have to do in tough situations. Pray, cry if 

you have to, and then pick yourself up and keep fighting. 11 I have done just that. I prayed 

and asked God for guidance over this situation to get through this storm the enemy has 

presented us with. Then I cried and let the tears of frustration and worry roll down my face, 

neck, and pillow. When I was able to, I got back up, sat at my desk, and went to work calling 

any and every company in central Illinois, as well as some in bordering states. I got a bunch 

of no's for completing our audit, but received two yes's--one from West & Company in 

Champaign, IL; the other from Pettit & Company CPAs in Indianapolis, Indiana. I have 

submitted our most recently completed audit from 2023 to both companies and am awaiting 

a response with regard to cost estimate. As soon as I receive that cost information, I will 

reach out to our board for an emergency meeting to approve the new auditor, as we did in a 

previous year with our budget. If our new CPA firm works out well for us, we will stick with 

it going forward and continue to submit the requested documents to them in a timely 

manner so they may complete our audit in a timely manner. 

Step Four: Attach documentation which will clarify the situation, including documentation 

from your CPA firm, if related to the annual audit or financial review. 

Step Five: Attend a meeting of the full Board, preferably in person, to answer questions. 

46



47



48



49



50



51



52



 

Special Request for Consideration by CCDDB or CCMHB 
 
Complete and direct to stephanie@ccmhb.org and either kim@ccmhb.org or leon@ccmhb.org. 
Full Board approval is needed for certain exceptions to requirements and to reverse actions taken by the 
CCDDB- CCMHB staff. The completed request form will be presented to the CCDDB or CCMHB at a meeting. 

 
Requester’s Name: WIN Recovery  
 
Date: 04/11/2025 
 
Agency Name: WIN Recovery  
 
Contract(s): CCMHB 

Step One: Identify the type of special consideration requested. 
 

 Consideration of Late Funding Request 
 Release of Paused Payment(s) 
 Continuation of Contract(s) 
 Reversal of Other Compliance Action 
 Waiver of Other Contract Requirement 
 Other 

 
Step Two: Describe the circumstances necessitating this request. 
Due to the more strenous requirements of State and Federal grants it took longer than last 

year due to our increase in revenue.  Which consist of GAGAS.  There was also 
documentation that my bookeeper was unaware of that CLA needed to correct.  The last 
document was received on 4/11/25 to finish the audit and the Board plans on having an 
emergency board meeting to vote to pass the Audit.    
 

 
Step Three: Identify a solution to be implemented to avoid this circumstance in the future. 
This following year I only had bookkeeping services for our organization, but we have 
moved to full service with CLA and we have a Quality Assurance Officer, which assist 
facillitating all the operation deadlines and quality of record keeping and coordinates all site 
visit and audit compliance requirements that are required by other Funding Agencies. 
 
 

Step Four: Attach documentation which will clarify the situation, including documentation 

53

mailto:stephanie@ccmhb.org
mailto:kim@ccmhb.org
mailto:leon@ccmhb.org


 

from your CPA firm, if related to the annual audit or financial review. 

 

 
Step Five: Attend a meeting of the full Board, preferably in person, to answer questions. 

54



1 of 4

Monday, April  14, 2025 at 08:30:09 Central Daylight TimeMonday, April  14, 2025 at 08:30:09 Central Daylight TimeMonday, April  14, 2025 at 08:30:09 Central Daylight TimeMonday, April  14, 2025 at 08:30:09 Central Daylight Time

Subject:Subject:Subject:Subject: FW: [External] Re: EMERGENCY ASSISTANCEFw: WIN 2024 Audit DRAFT
Date:Date:Date:Date: Monday, April 14, 2025 at 8:30:03 AM Central Daylight Time
From:From:From:From: Bethany Little
Attachments:Attachments:Attachments:Attachments: image001.png, image002.png, image003.png

From: Wright, Haley <Haley.Wright@claconnect.com>
Sent: Tuesday, March 25, 2025 8:47 AM
To: Bethany Little <bethany@win-recovery.org>
Subject: RE: [External] Re: EMERGENCY ASSISTANCEFw: WIN 2024 Audit DRAFT
 
Hi Bethany,
 
For some reason, the email from Sunday didn’t make it to me.
 
I will try to call later today but in meetings most of the morning.
 
I usually have the auditors do the lease accounting for my other clients and it is normally
something the auditors ask about upfront. I will need to find if someone at CLA can do this
quickly because I know I will not be able to get to it for a couple of weeks. I will start by sending
a few messages out to others at CLA about their availability for this week.
 
Thanks!
 
 

Haley Wright, CPA (she/her/hers)
Manager
Client Accounting and Advisory Services
(CAAS)

Direct 217-373-3105
CLA (CliftonLarsonAllen
LLP)
haley.wright@claconnect.co
m

CLA (CliftonLarsonAllen LLP) is an independent network member of CLA Global. See CLAglobal.com/disclaimer.
Investment advisory services are offered through CliftonLarsonAllen Wealth Advisors, LLC, an SEC-registered
investment advisor.

 
From: Bethany Little <bethany@win-recovery.org>
Sent: Monday, March 24, 2025 10:37 PM
To: Wright, Haley <Haley.Wright@claconnect.com>
Subject: [External] Re: EMERGENCY ASSISTANCEFw: WIN 2024 Audit DRAFT
 
Think Security – This email originated from an external source.  Be cautiousThink Security – This email originated from an external source.  Be cautiousThink Security – This email originated from an external source.  Be cautiousThink Security – This email originated from an external source.  Be cautious

55

mailto:Haley.Wright@claconnect.com
mailto:bethany@win-recovery.org
mailto:haley.wright@claconnect.com
https://www.claglobal.com/legal-disclaimer/
mailto:bethany@win-recovery.org
mailto:Haley.Wright@claconnect.com


2 of 4

with any links or attachments.with any links or attachments.with any links or attachments.with any links or attachments.
Please reach out to me tomorrow 217.766.3413. 
 
Get Outlook for iOS

From: Bethany Little <bethany@win-recovery.org>
Sent: Sunday, March 23, 2025 10:08:32 AM
To: Haley Wright <Haley.Wright@claconnect.com>
Subject: EMERGENCY ASSISTANCEFw: WIN 2024 Audit DRAFT
 
As you know how CCMHB can be about this audit.  Please respond because the
auditor have ran into a issue with lease, can you assist in this matter asap.  Contact
me if you need to.
 
 

Bethany B Little
Bethany B. Little, MSW, QMHP

Founder & CEO | WIN Recovery

621 S Plymouth Ct. Suite 100, Chicago Il. 60605

Cellular: 217-766-3413

Office: 872-283-1305 | bethany@win-recovery.org

     

From: Maria Herrera <mherrera@raglandassoc.com>
Sent: Thursday, March 20, 2025 5:28 PM
To: Bethany Little <bethany@win-recovery.org>; Gregory Arnold <garnold@raglandassoc.com>
Cc: Amelia Solorio <asolorio@raglandassoc.com>
Subject: WIN 2024 Audit DRAFT
 
Hello Bethany,  as discussed, I am attaching the first draft copy of the audit report for your review. 
Keep in mind, it is still going through our internal quality assurance process.  I will be working on the
990/AG first thing in the morning.
 
I have notes from Greg:I have notes from Greg:I have notes from Greg:I have notes from Greg:

56

https://aka.ms/o0ukef
mailto:bethany@win-recovery.org
mailto:Haley.Wright@claconnect.com
https://win4recovery.com/
mailto:bethany@win-recovery.org
http://www.win-recovery.org/
http://www.win-recovery.org/
mailto:mherrera@raglandassoc.com
mailto:bethany@win-recovery.org
mailto:garnold@raglandassoc.com
mailto:asolorio@raglandassoc.com


3 of 4

 
b. We have a significant issue please send the lease attached,  to your accountant, so that they

can account for it in accordance with the new lease requirements. 
 

LEASE ACCOUNTINGLEASE ACCOUNTINGLEASE ACCOUNTINGLEASE ACCOUNTING

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), whichIn February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), whichIn February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), whichIn February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), which
requires a lease to recognize assets and liabilities for leases with lease termsrequires a lease to recognize assets and liabilities for leases with lease termsrequires a lease to recognize assets and liabilities for leases with lease termsrequires a lease to recognize assets and liabilities for leases with lease terms
of more than twelve months.  Consistent with current GAAP, the recognition,of more than twelve months.  Consistent with current GAAP, the recognition,of more than twelve months.  Consistent with current GAAP, the recognition,of more than twelve months.  Consistent with current GAAP, the recognition,
measurement, and presentation of expenses and cash flows existing from ameasurement, and presentation of expenses and cash flows existing from ameasurement, and presentation of expenses and cash flows existing from ameasurement, and presentation of expenses and cash flows existing from a
lese by a lease primarily will depend on its classification as a financing orlese by a lease primarily will depend on its classification as a financing orlese by a lease primarily will depend on its classification as a financing orlese by a lease primarily will depend on its classification as a financing or
operating lease.  However, unlike current GAAP – which requires only capitaloperating lease.  However, unlike current GAAP – which requires only capitaloperating lease.  However, unlike current GAAP – which requires only capitaloperating lease.  However, unlike current GAAP – which requires only capital
leases to be recognized on the statement of financial position, the new ASUleases to be recognized on the statement of financial position, the new ASUleases to be recognized on the statement of financial position, the new ASUleases to be recognized on the statement of financial position, the new ASU
requires both financing and operating leases to be recognized on the statementrequires both financing and operating leases to be recognized on the statementrequires both financing and operating leases to be recognized on the statementrequires both financing and operating leases to be recognized on the statement
of financial position.  Various subsequent accounting standards have beenof financial position.  Various subsequent accounting standards have beenof financial position.  Various subsequent accounting standards have beenof financial position.  Various subsequent accounting standards have been
issued by FASB that clarify, modify, or expand guidance for Topic 842.issued by FASB that clarify, modify, or expand guidance for Topic 842.issued by FASB that clarify, modify, or expand guidance for Topic 842.issued by FASB that clarify, modify, or expand guidance for Topic 842.

 
j. We realize that you want an expedited report.  We have attached the draft report as it stands

now, but because of the required lease account, the financials and the report will change. 
Your accountant will need to get this done.  If there is a challenge with your accountant,
please let us know and maybe we can assist, but its accounting and it will include additional
work and fees.  Let us know how you want us to proceed with this part.

 
k. We don’t need the fixed asset schedule since it’s only for the property.

 
m. We still need the line of credit documents and statement as of June 30, 2024.

 
Let me know if you have any questions.
 

Please notice our new address!
 
Respectfully,
 
Maria Herrera
HR/Office Manager
RABM & Associates, LLC
9401 S Pulaski Rd.  Suite 201
Evergreen Park, IL 60805
708.333.0634
708.333.6680 Fax
mherrera@raglandassoc.com

57

mailto:mherrera@raglandassoc.com


4 of 4

Website: rabmassociates.com
WE ACCEPT CREDIT CARDS!
 

PLEASE NOTE OUR NEW ADDRESS AS OF
NOVEMBER 1, 2024.
9401 S. PULASKI RD Suite 201
EVERGREEN PARK, IL 60805
 
Ragland, Arnold, Buchanan, Morris & Associates, LLC would love your feedback.
Post a review to our profile.
https://g.page/r/CUMaVMZnsQZuEAg/review
 
Information in this email is PRIVATE, CONFIDENTIAL and PRIVILEGED and is intended only
for the recipient.  
 

58

https://g.page/r/CUMaVMZnsQZuEAg/review


From: Bethany Little
To: Lynn Canfield; Leon Bryson
Subject: FW: CCMHB Check List
Date: Wednesday, April 16, 2025 2:50:57 PM

I am really trying to get this done, but this is a perfect example of what we have had to
struggle with.  I hate to look for another agency to do our audit because he knows us
being that he has always done them for us, but please share this with the board for
evidence that we are trying.

From: Gregory Arnold <garnold@raglandassoc.com>
Date: Wednesday, April 16, 2025 at 1:21 PM
To: Bethany Little <bethany@win-recovery.org>, Maria Herrera
<mherrera@raglandassoc.com>
Subject: RE: CCMHB Check List

No, it was actually blank.  In terms of an update my team was working on the lease accounting
piece and had to get some tax returns done for the tax deadline day yesterday but will be back
on it tomorrow.  I will keep you posted!
 
Best Regards,

 
Greg

 
 
Gregory L. Arnold, Managing Partner
Ragland, Arnold, Buchanan, Morris & Associates, LLC.
CPA's and Management Consultants
708.333.0634 (Office)
708.333.6680 (Fax)
 
Need to send me a file? Just click here: Greg’s Secure Filedrop
 
From: Bethany Little <bethany@win-recovery.org>
Sent: Tuesday, April 15, 2025 2:24 PM
To: Gregory Arnold <garnold@raglandassoc.com>; Maria Herrera <mherrera@raglandassoc.com>
Subject: Re: CCMHB Check List

 
I filled it out​ with the dates. Did I not send that one
Get Outlook for iOS

59

mailto:bethany@win-recovery.org
mailto:lynn@ccmhb.org
mailto:leon@ccmhb.org
https://downloads.raglandassoc.com/filedrop/~MJd72u
https://aka.ms/o0ukef


DRAFT

CCMHB PY2026 Funding Requests with Reviewers
Agency Program Request Reviewer Team

*indicates need for PY24 audit

CCRPC - Community Services Youth Assessment Center $76,350 Youakim/Omo-Osagie

CC Children's Advocacy Center CC Children's Advocacy Center $63,911 Patterson/Nichols

CC Health Care Consumers CHW Outreach and Benefits Enrollment $97,139 Palencia/Rodriguez

Justice Involved CHW Services & Benefits $103,284 Sprandel/Miner

CSCNCC Resource Connection $70,667 Youakim/Omo-Osagie

Crisis Nursery Beyond Blue Champaign County $90,000 Patterson/Nichols

DSC - I/DD Program Family Development $702,000 Sprandel/Miner

ECIRMAC (Refugee Ctr) Family Support & Strengthening $75,441 Youakim/Omo-Osagie

Family Service Counseling $143,322 Patterson/Nichols

Self-Help Center $38,191 Palencia/Rodriguez

Senior Counseling & Advocacy $214,360 Sprandel/Miner

Promise Healthcare Mental Health Services $360,000 Palencia/Rodriguez

PHC Wellness $125,000 Youakim/Omo-Osagie

RACES Sexual Trauma Therapy Services $196,205 Sprandel/Miner

Sexual Violence Prevention Education $108,115 Palencia/Rodriguez

CC Christian Health Center* CCCHC Community Mental Health Program $100,000 Sprandel/Miner

Immigrant Services of CU* Immigrant Mental Health Program- RETURNING $200,256 Patterson/Nichols

UNCC* Community Study Center - RETURNING $382,180 Youakim/Omo-Osagie

WIN Recovery* Community Support Re-Entry Houses $183,000 Patterson/Nichols

Win Resilience Resource Ctr- NEW $270,000 Palencia/Rodriguez

Chair McLay will provide supplementary review on all applications.

In addition, any board member may provide supplementary review on any application.
*indicates need for PY24 audit

Early estimate of available PY26 amounts Requests Differences

Total (after 2 yr obligations - see below) $3,157,807 $3,599,421 -$441,614

For MH/SUD= $2,475,143 $2,897,421 -$422,278

For DD= $682,664 $702,000 -$19,336

Other PY26 obligations are PY25-PY26 contracts totaling $3,089,066.

PY25-PY26 MH/SUD contracts =$2,831,786 , PY25-PY26 IDD contracts = $257,280.60



 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

CHAMPAIGN COUNTY  
MENTAL HEALTH BOARD 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

Minutes—March 19, 2025 

This meeting was held  
at the Brookens Administrative Center, Urbana, IL and remotely. 

 
5:45 p.m. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Joe Omo-Osagie, Tony Nichols, Molly McLay, Chris Miner, Elaine 
Palencia, Emily Rodriguez, Jane Sprandel 

 
MEMBERS EXCUSED: Kyle Patterson, Jon Paul Youakim 
 
STAFF PRESENT: Kim Bowdry, Leon Bryson, Lynn Canfield, Shandra Summerville, 

Stephanie Howard-Gallo, Chris Wilson 
 
OTHERS PRESENT: Jacinda Dariotis, UIUC; Cindy Crawford, Community Services 

Center of Northern Champaign County (CSCNCC); Kelli Martin, 
DSC: Ann Pearcy, Cunningham Children’s Home; Brenda Eakins, 
Kerrie Hacker, GROW; Joshua Gavel, UP Center; Melissa 
Courtwright, C-U at Home 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 
 
CCMHB President McLay called the meeting to order at 5:50 p.m.  
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Roll call was taken, and a quorum was present. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
The agenda was approved. 
 
CCDDB and CCMHB SCHEDULES: 
 
Updated copies of CCDDB and CCMHB meeting schedules and CCMHB allocation timeline were 
included in the packet.   

61



 

   
ACRONYMS and GLOSSARY: 
 
A list of commonly used acronyms was included for information. 
 
CITIZEN INPUT / PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 
 
Kerri Hacker from GROW announced a new peer-to-peer group at the McKinley Foundation. 
 
PRESIDENT’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. McLay briefly reviewed items on the agenda. 
 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Canfield briefly discussed the budget and potential budget changes. 
 
APPROVAL OF CCMHB MINUTES: 
 
Minutes from the 2/19/25 meeting were included in the packet.  Ms. Howard-Gallo was asked to 
review the meeting recording from 2/19/25 regarding the motion pertaining to WIN Recovery.  
She reviewed it and the motion stands as written. 
 

MOTION:  Ms. McLay moved to approve the meeting minutes from 
2/19/25.  Ms. Palencia seconded the motion.  A voice vote was taken, 
and the motion passed unanimously. 

 
VENDOR INVOICE LISTS: 
 
Vendor Invoice Lists were included in the Board packet.   
 

MOTION: Ms. Sprandel moved to accept the Vendor Invoice Lists. 
Ms. McLay seconded the motion. A voice vote was taken, and the 
motion passed unanimously. 

 
STAFF REPORTS: 
 
A report from Director Canfield was included in the packet.  Staff reports from Kim Bowdry, 
Leon Bryson, Stephanie Howard-Gallo, Shandra Summerville, and Chris Wilson were deferred 
due to work on the program summaries.  
 
NEW BUSINESS: 

Evaluation Capacity Building Project: 
A decision memorandum provided an overview of the Evaluation Capacity Building project and 
requested a two-year extension. Jacinda Dariotis from the Family Resilience Center presented 
and answered Board questions.  

62



 

 
MOTION:   Ms. Sprandel moved to authorize the Executive Director 
to enter into a twenty-four month extension to the contract with the 
Family Resiliency Center for the support as proposed, with a start 
date of May 1, 2025, end date of April 30, 2027, and total cost of 
$271,686, pending approval by the CCDDB.  Mr. Miner seconded.  A 
roll call vote was taken and the motion passed unanimously. 

 
 
Results of Survey on Emerging Threats: 
Survey results were included in the packet. 
 
Review of Applications for PY2026 Funding: 
For information only, the packet included a briefing memorandum on the process of reviewing 
requests for funding, with a checklist for Board member use. A list of successful applications was 
included in the packet.  Director Canfield and Mr. Bryson provided an audit update. 
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
 
Community Behavioral Health Needs Assessment Activities: 
Information on community needs assessment activities were included in the Board packet. 
 
disAbility Resource Expo Update: 
Save the Date flyers and a financial report were included in the Board packet. 
 
AIR Update: 
Director Canfield provided a brief report on upcoming events related to Ebertfest 2025. 
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION AND AGENCY INPUT: 
 
None. 
 
BOARD TO BOARD REPORTS: 
 
None. 
 
COUNTY BOARD INPUT: 
 
None. 
 
CCDDB INPUT: 
 
The CCDDB met earlier in the day. 
 
 
 

63



 

BOARD ANNOUNCEMENTS AND INPUT: 
 
None. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:09 p.m. 
 
Respectfully 
Submitted by:    Stephanie Howard-Gallo                    
     CCMHB/CCDDB Operations and Compliance Coordinator 
               
*Minutes are in draft form and subject to CCMHB approval. 
  

64



C
h

a
m

p
a

ig
n

 C
o

u
n

ty
, 

IL
 

V
E

N
D

O
R

 I
N

V
O

IC
E

 L
IS

T
 

I
N

V
O

I
C

E
 

P
.

O
.

 
I

N
V

 
D

A
T

E
 

C
H

E
C

K
 R

U
N

 
C

H
E

C
K

#
 

I
N

V
O

I
C

E
 

N
E

T
 

P
A

I
D

 
A

M
O

U
N

T
 

D
U

E
 

D
A

T
E

 
T

Y
P

E
 

S
T

S
 

I
N

V
O

I
C

E
 

D
E

S
C

R
I

P
T

I
O

N
 

1
 

C
H

A
M

P
A

I
G

N
 

C
O

U
N

T
Y

 
T

R
E

A
S

U
R

E
R

 

M
a
r

'
2

5
 

I
D

D
S

I
2

5
-

0
8

9
 

C
H

E
C

K
 D

A
T

E
: 

0
3

/
0

7
/

2
0

2
5

 

Re
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
4/

0
7
/
2
0
2
5 

0
9
:
1
7
 

us
e
r
:
 

cm
w
1
1
0
0
6 

Pr
o
g
r
a
m
 
ID

:
 

a
p
i
n
v
ls

t
 

0
3

/
0

1
/

2
0

2
5

 
0

3
0

7
2

5
A

 
4

3
6

5
4

 
1

9
,

3
3

6
.

0
0

 

1
 

I
N

V
O

I
C

E
S

 
1

9
,

3
3

6
.

0
0

 

*
*

 
E

N
D

 
O

F
 

R
E

P
O

R
T

 
-

G
e
n

e
r

a
t

e
d

 
b
y

 
C

h
r

i
s

 
M

.
 

W
i
l

s
o

n
*

*
 

1
9

,
3

3
6

.
0

0
 

0
3

/
3

1
/

2
0

2
5

 
I

N
V

 
P

D
 

I
D

D
S

I
2

5
-

0
8

9
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

i
t

y
 

P
a
g

e
 

1
 

65



C
ha

m
pa

ig
n 

C
ou

nt
y,

 IL
V

E
N

D
O

R
 IN

V
O

IC
E

 L
IS

T

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
4
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
5
 
1
3
:
3
8

U
s
e
r
:

c
m
w
1
1
0
0
6

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:

a
p
i
n
v
l
s
t

P
a
g
e
 

 
1

I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 

 
P
.
O
.
 

 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
R
U
N
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
#
 

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
N
E
T
 

 
P
A
I
D
 
A
M
O
U
N
T
 
D
U
E
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
S
T
S
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
E
S
C
R
I
P
T
I
O
N

 
1
0
0
7
6
 
A
L
L
I
S
O
N
 
M
 
B
O
O
T

0
0
2
4
 

 
0
3
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
5
 

 
0
3
2
8
2
5
A
 

 
4
4
6
6
7
 

 
4
,
0
6
2
.
5
0
 

 
4
,
0
6
2
.
5
0
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
Q
1
 
2
0
2
5
 
E
x
p
o
/
A
i
r
 
C
o
o
r
d

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
5
 

 
1
8
2
2
3
 
A
S
S
O
C
 
O
F
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
T
Y
 
M
E
N
T
A
L
 
H
E
A
L
T
H
 
A
U
T
H
O
R
I
T
I
E
S
 
O
F
 
I
L

2
5
-
1
0
0
4

 
0
2
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
5
 

 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 

 
4
3
6
8
8
 

 
1
6
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 

 
1
6
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
0
8
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
2
0
2
5
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
h
i
p
 
D
u
e
s

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
5
 

 
1
8
8
0
5
 
C
-
U
 
A
T
 
H
O
M
E

M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
2
1
 

 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 

 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 

 
4
3
6
9
5
 

 
2
1
,
3
9
1
.
0
0
 

 
2
1
,
3
9
1
.
0
0
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
2
1
 
S
h
e
l
t
e
r
 
C
a
s
e

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
5
 

 
1
 
C
H
A
M
P
A
I
G
N
 
C
O
U
N
T
Y
 
T
R
E
A
S
U
R
E
R

M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
0
6
 

 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 

 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 

 
4
3
6
6
2
 

 
5
,
3
2
5
.
0
0
 

 
5
,
3
2
5
.
0
0
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
0
6
 
C
h
i
l
d
r
e
n
'
s
 
A

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
5
 

M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
2
5
 

 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 

 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 

 
4
3
6
5
1
 

 
6
,
3
6
2
.
0
0
 

 
6
,
3
6
2
.
0
0
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
2
5
 
Y
o
u
t
h
 
A
s
s
e
s
s

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
5
 

M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
0
4
 

 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 

 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 

 
4
3
6
5
0
 

 
4
,
5
2
3
.
0
0
 

 
4
,
5
2
3
.
0
0
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
0
4
 
H
o
m
e
l
e
s
s
 
S
e
r

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
5
 

M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
2
6
 

 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 

 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 

 
4
3
6
4
9
 

 
3
2
,
3
7
1
.
0
0
 

 
3
2
,
3
7
1
.
0
0
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
2
6
 
E
a
r
l
y
 
C
h
i
l
d
h

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
5
 

M
a
r
'
2
5
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
 
R
e
n
t
 

 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 

 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 

 
4
3
6
5
5
 

 
2
,
1
9
6
.
7
8
 

 
2
,
1
9
6
.
7
8
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
M
a
r
'
2
5
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
 
R
e
n
t
 
0
5
3

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
5
 

 
5
0
,
7
7
7
.
7
8
 

 
1
8
2
5
9
 
C
H
A
M
P
A
I
G
N
 
C
O
U
N
T
Y
 
H
E
A
L
T
H
 
C
A
R
E
 
C
O
N
S
U
M
E
R
S

M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
4
4
 

 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 

 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 

 
5
0
5
1
5
5
 

 
7
,
2
0
8
.
0
0
 

 
7
,
2
0
8
.
0
0
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
4
4
 
C
H
W
 
O
u
t
r
e
a
c
h

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
5
 

M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
4
5
 

 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 

 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 

 
5
0
5
1
5
5
 

 
7
,
5
1
2
.
0
0
 

 
7
,
5
1
2
.
0
0
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
4
5
 
J
u
s
t
i
c
e
 
I
n
v
o

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
5
 

M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
6
6
 

 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 

 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 

 
5
0
5
1
5
5
 

 
8
,
7
5
0
.
0
0
 

 
8
,
7
5
0
.
0
0
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
6
6
 
D
i
s
a
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
A

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
5
 

 
2
3
,
4
7
0
.
0
0
 

 
1
0
1
4
8
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
T
Y
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
C
E
N
T
E
R
 
O
F
 
N
O
R
T
H
E
R
N

M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
0
8
 

 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 

 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 

 
4
3
7
1
7
 

 
5
,
7
1
7
.
0
0
 

 
5
,
7
1
7
.
0
0
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
0
8
 
R
e
s
o
u
r
c
e
 
C
o
n

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
5
 

66



C
ha

m
pa

ig
n 

C
ou

nt
y,

 IL
V

E
N

D
O

R
 IN

V
O

IC
E

 L
IS

T

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
4
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
5
 
1
3
:
3
8

U
s
e
r
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
c
m
w
1
1
0
0
6

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
a
p
i
n
v
l
s
t

P
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
2

I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
.
O
.
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
R
U
N
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
#
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
N
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
A
I
D
 
A
M
O
U
N
T
 
D
U
E
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
S
T
S
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
E
S
C
R
I
P
T
I
O
N

 
 
 
 
1
8
0
9
2
 
C
O
U
R
A
G
E
 
C
O
N
N
E
C
T
I
O
N

F
e
b
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
0
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
7
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
6
6
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
6
6
9
.
0
0
 
0
2
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
0
7
 
C
o
u
r
a
g
e
 
C
o
n
n

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

J
a
n
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
0
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
7
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
6
6
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
6
6
9
.
0
0
 
0
1
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
0
7
 
C
o
u
r
a
g
e
 
C
o
n
n

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
0
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
7
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
6
6
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
6
6
9
.
0
0
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
0
7
 
C
o
u
r
a
g
e
 
C
o
n
n

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
,
0
0
7
.
0
0
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
1
6
3
 
C
R
I
S
I
S
 
N
U
R
S
E
R
Y

M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
7
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
0
5
 
B
e
y
o
n
d
 
B
l
u
e
 

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
1
8
3
0
5
 
C
U
N
N
I
N
G
H
A
M
 
C
H
I
L
D
R
E
N
S
 
H
O
M
E

M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
7
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
9
7
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
9
7
5
.
0
0
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
1
8
 
E
C
H
O
 
H
o
u
s
i
n
g

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
3
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
7
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
,
5
1
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
,
5
1
1
.
0
0
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
3
6
 
F
a
m
i
l
i
e
s
 
S
t
r

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
,
4
8
6
.
0
0
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
1
7
0
 
D
E
V
E
L
O
P
M
E
N
T
A
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
C
E
N
T
E
R
 
O
F

M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
7
2
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
4
,
6
8
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
4
,
6
8
1
.
0
0
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
1
2
 
F
a
m
i
l
y
 
D
e
v
e
l

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
1
8
3
2
3
 
D
I
M
O
N
D
 
B
R
O
S
.
 
I
N
S
U
R
A
N
C
E
 
L
L
C

1
4
3
9
0
4
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
2
8
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
7
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
5
0
.
0
0
 
0
4
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
P
o
l
i
c
y
 
#
E
P
P
 
0
5
7
7
7
3
9
 
5
/

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1
4
3
9
0
4
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
2
8
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
7
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
4
9
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
4
9
1
.
0
0
 
0
4
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
P
o
l
i
c
y
 
#
E
P
P
 
0
5
7
7
7
4
5
 
5
/

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
4
4
1
.
0
0
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
1
7
5
 
D
O
N
 
M
O
Y
E
R
 
B
O
Y
S
 
&
 
G
I
R
L
S
 
C
L
U
B

M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
7
3
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
1
3
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
1
3
1
.
0
0
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
1
5
 
C
U
 
C
h
a
n
g
e

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
1
8
5
 
E
A
S
T
 
C
N
T
R
L
 
I
L
 
R
E
F
U
G
E
E
 
M
U
T
U
A
L
 
A
S
S
I
S
T
 
C
T
R

67



C
ha

m
pa

ig
n 

C
ou

nt
y,

 IL
V

E
N

D
O

R
 IN

V
O

IC
E

 L
IS

T

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
4
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
5
 
1
3
:
3
8

U
s
e
r
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
c
m
w
1
1
0
0
6

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
a
p
i
n
v
l
s
t

P
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
3

I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
.
O
.
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
R
U
N
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
#
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
N
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
A
I
D
 
A
M
O
U
N
T
 
D
U
E
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
S
T
S
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
E
S
C
R
I
P
T
I
O
N

M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
7
3
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
1
6
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
1
6
6
.
0
0
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
0
1
 
F
a
m
i
l
y
 
S
u
p
p
o

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
1
8
3
 
A
L
E
X
A
N
D
E
R
 
F
 
C
A
M
P
B
E
L
L

7
2
4
-
2
5
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
5
1
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
4
4
9
.
9
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
4
4
9
.
9
5
 
0
3
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
Q
2
 
F
Y
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
3
8
 
C
C
M
H

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
 
E
M
P
L
O
Y
E
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R

B
o
w
d
r
y
 
3
/
6
/
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
1
4
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
2
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
.
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
.
2
2
 
0
4
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
T
r
a
v
e
l
 
L
o
g
 
2
/
4
/
2
5
 
-
 
2
/

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
A
Y
E
E
:
 
B
o
w
d
r
y
,
 
K
i
m
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

B
r
y
s
o
n
 
3
/
3
/
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
8
7
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
.
5
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
.
5
6
 
0
3
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
T
r
a
v
e
l
 
L
o
g
 
1
/
2
4
/
2
5
 
-
 
2

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
A
Y
E
E
:
 
B
r
y
s
o
n
,
 
L
e
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

C
a
n
f
i
e
l
d
 
3
/
1
7
/
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
2
1
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
5
3
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
1
3
.
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
1
3
.
0
5
 
0
3
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
T
r
a
v
e
l
 
L
o
g
 
2
/
1
9
/
2
5
 
-
 
3

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
A
Y
E
E
:
 
C
a
n
f
i
e
l
d
,
 
L
y
n
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

H
o
w
a
r
d
-
G
a
l
l
o
 
3
/
1
0
/
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
1
4
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
.
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
.
6
0
 
0
4
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
T
r
a
v
e
l
 
L
o
g
 
1
/
1
4
/
2
5
 
-
 
2

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
A
Y
E
E
:
 
H
o
w
a
r
d
-
G
a
l
l
o
,
 
S
t
e
p
h
a
n
i
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
8
5
.
4
3
 

 
 
 
 
1
8
3
4
3
 
F
A
M
I
L
Y
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
O
F
 
C
H
A
M
P
A
I
G
N
 
C
O
U
N
T
Y

F
e
b
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
7
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
0
2
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
1
4
 
C
o
u
n
s
e
l
i
n
g

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

F
e
b
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
7
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
4
1
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
4
1
0
.
0
0
 
0
2
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
1
6
 
S
e
l
f
 
H
e
l
p
 
C
e

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

F
e
b
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
7
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
8
6
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
8
6
5
.
0
0
 
0
2
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
1
7
 
S
e
n
i
o
r
 
C
o
u
n
s

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
7
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
1
4
 
C
o
u
n
s
e
l
i
n
g

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
7
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
4
1
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
4
1
0
.
0
0
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
1
6
 
S
e
l
f
 
H
e
l
p
 
C
e

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
7
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
8
6
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
8
6
5
.
0
0
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
1
7
 
S
e
n
i
o
r
 
C
o
u
n
s

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
,
5
5
0
.
0
0
 

 
 
 
 
2
0
1
7
3
 
G
R
E
A
T
E
R
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
T
Y
 
A
I
D
S
 
P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
O
F
 
E
A
S
T
 
C
E
N
T
R
A
L
 
I
L

M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
5
1
6
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
1
3
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
1
3
0
.
0
0
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
2
2
 
A
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
,
 
C
a

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
2
4
2
 
G
R
O
W
 
I
N
 
I
L
L
I
N
O
I
S

68



C
ha

m
pa

ig
n 

C
ou

nt
y,

 IL
V

E
N

D
O

R
 IN

V
O

IC
E

 L
IS

T

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
4
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
5
 
1
3
:
3
8

U
s
e
r
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
c
m
w
1
1
0
0
6

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
a
p
i
n
v
l
s
t

P
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
4

I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
.
O
.
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
R
U
N
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
#
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
N
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
A
I
D
 
A
M
O
U
N
T
 
D
U
E
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
S
T
S
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
E
S
C
R
I
P
T
I
O
N

M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
7
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
,
1
4
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
,
1
4
0
.
0
0
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
1
1
 
P
e
e
r
 
S
u
p
p
o
r
t

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
2
6
3
 
I
3
 
B
R
O
A
D
B
A
N
D
 
-
 
C
U

4
0
9
5
6
1
0
-
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
1
4
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
1
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
4
.
9
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
4
.
9
5
 
0
4
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
I
n
t
e
r
n
e
t
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
4
/
4
/
2

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
3
5
8
 
A
U
T
O
M
A
T
E
D
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
,
 
I
N
C
.

4
3
7
8
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
2
1
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
4
9
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
9
.
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
9
.
6
5
 
0
4
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
E
x
p
o
 
-
 
2
0
2
5
 
S
a
v
e
 
T
h
e
 
D

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
3
4
8
 
M
C
S
 
O
F
F
I
C
E
 
T
E
C
H
N
O
L
O
G
I
E
S
 
I
N
C

0
1
-
7
0
8
5
5
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
1
4
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
5
2
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
9
.
0
0
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
/
D
D
B
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
d

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0
1
-
7
0
8
6
7
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
2
1
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
5
2
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
7
.
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
7
.
5
0
 
0
4
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
T
i
c
k
e
t
 
#
4
8
8
4
5
 

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
1
6
.
5
0
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
4
2
3
 
P
E
P
S
I
 
C
O
L
A
 
C
H
A
M
P
A
I
G
N
-
U
R
B
A
N
A
 
B
O
T
T
L
I
N
G

1
0
2
3
4
1
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
2
1
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
5
2
7
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
.
0
0
 
0
4
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
A
c
c
t
 
#
 
0
5
7
3
4

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
1
8
4
1
3
 
P
R
O
M
I
S
E
 
H
E
A
L
T
H
C
A
R
E

M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
8
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
1
3
 
M
e
n
t
a
l
 
H
e
a
l
t

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
4
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
8
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
9
2
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
9
2
3
.
0
0
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
4
1
 
W
e
l
l
n
e
s
s

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
,
4
2
3
.
0
0
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
4
6
4
 
R
A
P
E
,
 
A
D
V
O
C
A
C
Y
,
 
C
O
U
N
S
E
L
I
N
G
 
&
 
E
D
U
C
A
T
I
O
N
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S

M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
0
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
8
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
2
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
2
5
0
.
0
0
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
0
2
 
S
e
x
u
a
l
 
V
i
o
l
e

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
3
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
8
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
6
6
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
6
6
6
.
0
0
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
3
5
 
S
e
x
u
a
l
 
T
r
a
u
m

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
,
9
1
6
.
0
0
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
4
8
8
 
R
O
S
E
C
R
A
N
C
E
,
 
I
N
C
.

69



C
ha

m
pa

ig
n 

C
ou

nt
y,

 IL
V

E
N

D
O

R
 IN

V
O

IC
E

 L
IS

T

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
4
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
5
 
1
3
:
3
8

U
s
e
r
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
c
m
w
1
1
0
0
6

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
a
p
i
n
v
l
s
t

P
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
5

I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
.
O
.
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
R
U
N
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
#
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
N
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
A
I
D
 
A
M
O
U
N
T
 
D
U
E
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
S
T
S
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
E
S
C
R
I
P
T
I
O
N

M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
8
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
0
5
2
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
0
5
2
.
0
0
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
1
9
 
B
e
n
e
f
i
t
s
 
C
a
s

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
8
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
2
0
 
C
r
i
m
i
n
a
l
 
J
u
s

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
8
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
3
3
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
3
3
3
.
0
0
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
2
3
 
R
e
c
o
v
e
r
y
 
H
o
m

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
8
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
,
8
3
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
,
8
3
3
.
0
0
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
3
0
 
C
r
i
s
i
s
 
C
o
-
R
e

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
,
2
1
8
.
0
0
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
5
8
0
 
U
N
I
T
E
D
 
W
A
Y
 
O
F
 
C
H
A
M
P
A
I
G
N
 
C
O
U
N
T
Y

2
4
2
5
H
P
C
-
0
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
8
2
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
0
3
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
2
0
2
4
-
2
5
 
R
e
g
i
o
n
a
l
 
C
o
m
m
u

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
5
8
3
 
U
N
I
V
E
R
S
I
T
Y
 
O
F
 
I
L
L
I
N
O
I
S

M
a
r
'
2
5
 
A
w
a
r
d
 
1
1
2
2
3
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
8
2
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
7
3
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
7
3
0
.
0
0
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
3
-
0
3
9
 
B
u
i
l
d

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
5
9
7
 
U
R
B
A
N
A
 
A
D
U
L
T
 
E
D
U
C
A
T
I
O
N

M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
4
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
8
3
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
7
2
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
7
2
6
.
0
0
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
4
2
 
C
-
U
 
E
a
r
l
y

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
6
3
8
 
E
L
A
N
 
F
I
N
A
N
C
I
A
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S

3
9
3
0
 
3
/
1
1
/
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
2
8
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
8
2
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
6
4
2
.
3
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
6
4
2
.
3
2
 
0
4
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
A
c
c
t
 
#
 
4
7
9
8
5
1
0
0
4
9
5
7
3
9
3

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
6
8
7
 
X
E
R
O
X
 
C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
I
O
N

2
3
0
7
3
3
2
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
2
8
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
8
3
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
9
.
0
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
9
.
0
6
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
J
a
n
'
2
5
 
C
o
p
i
e
r
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
 

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
3
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
4
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
3
,
4
5
0
.
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
 
E
N
D
 
O
F
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
-
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
C
h
r
i
s
 
M
.
 
W
i
l
s
o
n
 
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

70



C
ha

m
pa

ig
n 

C
ou

nt
y,

 IL

A
C

C
O

U
N

T 
D

E
TA

IL
 H

IS
TO

R
Y

 F
O

R
 2

02
5 

03
 T

O
 2

02
5 

03

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
4
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
5
 
1
4
:
5
2

U
s
e
r
:

c
m
w
1
1
0
0
6

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:

g
l
a
c
t
h
s
t

P
a
g
e
 

 
1

O
R
G
 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
 
P
R
O
J
 

 
N
E
T
 
L
E
D
G
E
R

 
Y
R
/
P
R
 

 
J
N
L
 
E
F
F
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
S
R
C
 
R
E
F
1
 
 
R
E
F
2
 

 
R
E
F
3
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
#
 

 
O
B
 

 
A
M
O
U
N
T
 

 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E

2
0
0
0
0
1
5
4
 
5
0
1
0
0
1
 

 
S
T
A
T
I
O
N
E
R
Y
 
A
N
D
 
P
R
I
N
T
I
N
G
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 

 
2
6
7
 
0
3
/
1
7
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
3
5
8
 

 
8
6
4
7
1
 

 
4
4
4
9
1
 

 
1
3
9
.
6
5
 

 
1
3
9
.
6
5

 
W
 
0
3
2
1
2
5
A
 
 
E
x
p
o
 
-
 
2
0
2
5
 
S
a
v
e
 
T
h
e
 
D
a
t
e
 
2
0
0
c
 
M
A
R
T
I
N
 
O
N
E
 
S
O
U
R
C
E
 
I
N

 
L
E
D
G
E
R
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E
S
 
-
-
-
 
D
E
B
I
T
S
:
 

 
1
3
9
.
6
5
 

 
C
R
E
D
I
T
S
:
 

 
.
0
0
 

 
N
E
T
:
 

 
1
3
9
.
6
5

2
0
0
0
0
1
5
4
 
5
0
1
0
0
2
 

 
O
F
F
I
C
E
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
5
0
9
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
4
5
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
7
3
3
3
 
 

 
5
0
5
3
9
5
 

 
4
7
.
4
8
 

 
4
7
.
4
8

 
W
 
0
4
0
4
2
5
A
 
 
8
.
5
X
1
1
 
3
2
L
b
 
w
h
t
 
g
l
s
y
 
p
a
p
r
 
-
1
0
0
 
Q
U
I
L
L
 
C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
I
O
N
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
5
0
9
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
4
5
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
7
3
3
6
 
 

 
5
0
5
3
9
5
 

 
1
2
2
.
5
4
 

 
1
7
0
.
0
2

 
W
 
0
4
0
4
2
5
A
 
 
H
p
 
9
6
2
X
l
 
b
l
a
c
k
/
9
6
2
 
c
m
y
 
i
n
k
 
4
P
k
 
Q
U
I
L
L
 
C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
I
O
N
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
5
0
9
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
4
5
3
 
 

 
8
7
3
3
6
 

 
5
0
5
3
9
5
 

 
1
4
3
.
4
4
 

 
3
1
3
.
4
6

 
W
 
0
4
0
4
2
5
A
 
 
H
p
 
4
1
0
A
 
c
y
a
n
 
t
o
n
e
r
 
c
a
r
t
r
i
d
g
e
 
 
Q
U
I
L
L
 
C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
I
O
N
 

 
L
E
D
G
E
R
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E
S
 
-
-
-
 
D
E
B
I
T
S
:
 

 
3
1
3
.
4
6
 

 
C
R
E
D
I
T
S
:
 

 
.
0
0
 

 
N
E
T
:
 

 
3
1
3
.
4
6

2
0
0
0
0
1
5
4
 
5
0
1
0
0
5
 

 
F
O
O
D
 
N
O
N
-
T
R
A
V
E
L
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
2
6
6
 
0
3
/
1
4
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
4
2
3
 

 
8
6
3
1
4
 

 
5
0
5
2
7
5
 

 
9
.
0
0
 

 
9
.
0
0

 
W
 
0
3
2
1
2
5
A
 
 
5
g
a
l
 
w
a
t
e
r
 
j
u
g
 
 

 
P
E
P
S
I
 
C
O
L
A
 
C
H
A
M
P
A
I
G
N

 
L
E
D
G
E
R
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E
S
 
-
-
-
 
D
E
B
I
T
S
:
 

 
9
.
0
0
 

 
C
R
E
D
I
T
S
:
 

 
.
0
0
 

 
N
E
T
:
 

 
9
.
0
0

2
0
0
0
0
1
5
4
 
5
0
2
0
0
1
 

 
P
R
O
F
E
S
S
I
O
N
A
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 

 
 
1
9
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
1
8
3
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
3
8
 
 
8
5
3
0
5
 
 

 
5
0
5
1
6
5
 

 
2
,
4
4
9
.
9
5
 

 
2
,
4
4
9
.
9
5

 
W
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
Q
2
 
F
Y
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
3
8
 
C
C
M
H
B
/
C
C
D
D
B
 
 
E
M
K
 
C
O
N
S
U
L
T
I
N
G
 
L
L
C
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 

 
1
9
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
5
8
0
 

 
8
5
1
8
7
 

 
4
3
8
2
8
 

 
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 

 
7
,
4
4
9
.
9
5

 
W
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
2
0
2
4
-
2
5
 
R
e
g
i
o
n
a
l
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
H
e
a
 
U
N
I
T
E
D
 
W
A
Y
 
O
F
 
C
H
A
M
P
A

 
2
5
/
0
3
 

 
 
2
7
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
5
8
3
 
M
H
B
2
3
-
0
3
9
 
 
8
5
2
4
7
 
 

 
4
3
8
2
9
 

 
1
0
,
7
3
0
.
0
0
 

 
1
8
,
1
7
9
.
9
5

 
W
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
3
-
0
3
9
 
B
u
i
l
d
i
n
g
 
A
g
e
n
 
U
N
I
V
E
R
S
I
T
Y
 
O
F
 
I
L
L
I
N
O

 
2
5
/
0
3
 

 
4
0
2
 
0
3
/
2
0
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
0
7
6
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
4
8
 
 
8
6
9
0
4
 

 
4
4
6
6
7
 

 
3
,
8
7
5
.
0
0
 

 
2
2
,
0
5
4
.
9
5

71



C
ha

m
pa

ig
n 

C
ou

nt
y,

 IL

A
C

C
O

U
N

T 
D

E
TA

IL
 H

IS
TO

R
Y

 F
O

R
 2

02
5 

03
 T

O
 2

02
5 

03

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
4
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
5
 
1
4
:
5
2

U
s
e
r
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
c
m
w
1
1
0
0
6

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
l
a
c
t
h
s
t

P
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
2

O
R
G
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
J
E
C
T
 
P
R
O
J
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T
 
L
E
D
G
E
R

 
Y
R
/
P
R
 
 
 
 
J
N
L
 
E
F
F
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
S
R
C
 
R
E
F
1
 
 
 
R
E
F
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
F
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
#
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
M
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
2
8
2
5
A
 
 
Q
1
 
2
0
2
5
 
D
i
s
a
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
R
e
s
o
u
r
c
e
 
E
x
 
A
L
L
I
S
O
N
 
B
O
O
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
4
0
2
 
0
3
/
2
0
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
0
7
6
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
4
8
 
 
8
6
9
0
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
6
6
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
7
.
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
,
2
4
2
.
4
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
2
8
2
5
A
 
 
Q
1
 
2
0
2
5
 
A
I
R
 
P
u
b
l
i
c
 
R
e
l
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
D
 
A
L
L
I
S
O
N
 
B
O
O
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
5
0
9
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
9
5
8
7
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
4
9
 
 
8
7
3
2
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
9
3
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
,
2
4
2
.
4
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
4
0
4
2
5
A
 
 
Q
1
 
2
0
2
5
 
D
i
s
a
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
R
e
s
o
u
r
c
e
 
E
x
 
B
O
O
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
D
G
E
R
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E
S
 
-
-
-
 
D
E
B
I
T
S
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
,
2
4
2
.
4
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
R
E
D
I
T
S
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
,
2
4
2
.
4
5

  2
0
0
0
0
1
5
4
 
5
0
2
0
0
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
U
T
S
I
D
E
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
1
2
0
 
0
3
/
0
6
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
3
4
8
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
4
0
 
 
8
5
5
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
5
2
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
9
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
1
4
2
5
A
 
 
M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
/
D
D
B
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
d
 
I
T
 
S
e
r
v
 
M
C
S
 
O
F
F
I
C
E
 
T
E
C
H
N
O
L
O
G

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
2
6
6
 
0
3
/
1
4
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
3
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
6
3
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
5
2
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
7
.
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
1
6
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
2
1
2
5
A
 
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
T
i
c
k
e
t
 
#
4
8
8
4
5
 
U
n
a
b
l
e
 
t
 
M
C
S
 
O
F
F
I
C
E
 
T
E
C
H
N
O
L
O
G

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
D
G
E
R
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E
S
 
-
-
-
 
D
E
B
I
T
S
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
1
6
.
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
R
E
D
I
T
S
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
1
6
.
5
0

  2
0
0
0
0
1
5
4
 
5
0
2
0
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
R
A
V
E
L
 
C
O
S
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
0
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
1
8
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
8
7
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
.
5
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
.
5
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
5
0
.
8
 
M
i
l
e
s
 
1
/
2
4
/
2
5
 
-
 
2
/
2
8
/
2
5
 
 
 
U
n
k
n
o
w
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
1
2
0
 
0
3
/
0
6
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
0
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
5
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
2
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
.
6
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
.
1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
1
4
2
5
A
 
 
1
6
.
6
 
M
i
l
e
s
 
2
/
4
/
2
5
 
-
 
E
x
p
o
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
n
k
n
o
w
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
1
2
0
 
0
3
/
0
6
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
0
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
5
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
2
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
.
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
.
7
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
1
4
2
5
A
 
 
8
 
M
i
l
e
s
 
2
/
1
8
/
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
n
k
n
o
w
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
1
2
0
 
0
3
/
0
6
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
0
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
8
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
.
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
2
.
3
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
1
4
2
5
A
 
 
2
8
 
M
i
l
e
s
 
1
/
1
4
/
2
5
 
-
 
2
/
2
5
/
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
U
n
k
n
o
w
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
2
6
7
 
0
3
/
1
7
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
0
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
6
4
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
5
3
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
8
.
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
4
0
.
4
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
2
1
2
5
A
 
 
8
1
1
.
5
 
M
i
l
e
s
 
2
/
1
9
/
2
5
 
-
 
3
/
6
/
2
5
 
 
 
U
n
k
n
o
w
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
2
6
7
 
0
3
/
1
7
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
0
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
6
4
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
5
3
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
8
5
.
4
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
2
1
2
5
A
 
 
M
e
a
l
s
 
2
/
2
8
/
2
5
 
-
 
3
/
7
/
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
n
k
n
o
w
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

72



C
ha

m
pa

ig
n 

C
ou

nt
y,

 IL

A
C

C
O

U
N

T 
D

E
TA

IL
 H

IS
TO

R
Y

 F
O

R
 2

02
5 

03
 T

O
 2

02
5 

03

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
4
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
5
 
1
4
:
5
2

U
s
e
r
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
c
m
w
1
1
0
0
6

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
l
a
c
t
h
s
t

P
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
3

O
R
G
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
J
E
C
T
 
P
R
O
J
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T
 
L
E
D
G
E
R

 
Y
R
/
P
R
 
 
 
 
J
N
L
 
E
F
F
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
S
R
C
 
R
E
F
1
 
 
 
R
E
F
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
F
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
#
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
M
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
4
0
2
 
0
3
/
2
0
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
6
3
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
6
7
5
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
8
2
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
.
8
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
3
0
4
.
2
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
2
8
2
5
A
 
 
H
i
l
t
o
n
 
I
n
t
e
r
n
a
t
i
o
n
a
l
 
2
/
1
0
/
2
5
 
 
 
V
I
S
A
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
4
0
2
 
0
3
/
2
0
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
6
3
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
6
7
5
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
8
2
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
5
6
.
5
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
2
6
0
.
8
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
2
8
2
5
A
 
 
H
i
l
t
o
n
 
I
n
t
e
r
n
a
t
i
o
n
a
l
 
3
/
4
/
2
5
 
 
 
 
V
I
S
A
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
D
G
E
R
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E
S
 
-
-
-
 
D
E
B
I
T
S
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
2
6
0
.
8
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
R
E
D
I
T
S
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
2
6
0
.
8
7

  2
0
0
0
0
1
5
4
 
5
0
2
0
0
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
S
U
R
A
N
C
E
 
(
n
o
n
-
p
a
y
r
o
l
l
)
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
4
0
2
 
0
3
/
2
0
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
8
3
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
6
9
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
7
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
2
8
2
5
A
 
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
L
i
a
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
R
e
n
e
w
a
l
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
I
M
O
N
D
 
B
R
O
S
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
4
0
2
 
0
3
/
2
0
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
8
3
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
6
9
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
7
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
4
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
4
9
1
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
2
8
2
5
A
 
 
C
o
m
m
e
r
c
i
a
l
 
P
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
R
e
n
e
w
a
l
 
 
 
 
D
I
M
O
N
D
 
B
R
O
S
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
D
G
E
R
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E
S
 
-
-
-
 
D
E
B
I
T
S
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
4
9
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
R
E
D
I
T
S
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
4
9
1
.
0
0

  2
0
0
0
0
1
5
4
 
5
0
2
0
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
0
0
0
0
1
 
2
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
2
4
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
6
5
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
1
9
6
.
7
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
1
9
6
.
7
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
M
a
r
'
2
5
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
 
R
e
n
t
 
0
5
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
C
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
D
G
E
R
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E
S
 
-
-
-
 
D
E
B
I
T
S
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
1
9
6
.
7
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
R
E
D
I
T
S
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
1
9
6
.
7
8

  2
0
0
0
0
1
5
4
 
5
0
2
0
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
U
E
S
,
 
L
I
C
E
N
S
E
 
&
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
S
H
I
P
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
8
2
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
1
8
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
6
8
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
0
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
2
0
2
5
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
h
i
p
 
D
u
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
S
S
O
C
 
O
F
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
T
Y
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
D
G
E
R
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E
S
 
-
-
-
 
D
E
B
I
T
S
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
R
E
D
I
T
S
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
0
0
0
.
0
0

  2
0
0
0
0
1
5
4
 
5
0
2
0
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
P
E
R
A
T
I
O
N
A
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
4
0
2
 
0
3
/
2
0
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
6
3
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
6
7
5
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
8
2
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
.
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
.
8
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
2
8
2
5
A
 
 
Z
o
o
m
.
c
o
m
 
3
/
1
0
/
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
I
S
A
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
4
0
2
 
0
3
/
2
0
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
6
3
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
6
7
5
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
8
2
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
.
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
9
.
6
0

73



C
ha

m
pa

ig
n 

C
ou

nt
y,

 IL

A
C

C
O

U
N

T 
D

E
TA

IL
 H

IS
TO

R
Y

 F
O

R
 2

02
5 

03
 T

O
 2

02
5 

03

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
4
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
5
 
1
4
:
5
2

U
s
e
r
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
c
m
w
1
1
0
0
6

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
l
a
c
t
h
s
t

P
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
4

O
R
G
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
J
E
C
T
 
P
R
O
J
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T
 
L
E
D
G
E
R

 
Y
R
/
P
R
 
 
 
 
J
N
L
 
E
F
F
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
S
R
C
 
R
E
F
1
 
 
 
R
E
F
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
F
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
#
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
M
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
2
8
2
5
A
 
 
Z
o
o
m
.
c
o
m
 
3
/
1
0
/
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
I
S
A
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
D
G
E
R
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E
S
 
-
-
-
 
D
E
B
I
T
S
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
9
.
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
R
E
D
I
T
S
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
9
.
6
0

  2
0
0
0
0
1
5
4
 
5
0
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
N
T
R
I
B
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
&
 
G
R
A
N
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
0
0
0
0
1
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
0
6
 
 
8
5
2
0
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
6
6
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
3
2
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
3
2
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
0
6
 
C
h
i
l
d
r
e
n
'
s
 
A
d
 
C
C
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
0
0
0
0
1
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
2
6
 
 
8
5
2
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
6
4
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
,
3
7
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
,
6
9
6
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
2
6
 
E
a
r
l
y
 
C
h
i
l
d
h
o
 
C
C
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
0
0
0
0
1
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
0
4
 
 
8
5
2
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
6
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
5
2
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
,
2
1
9
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
0
4
 
H
o
m
e
l
e
s
s
 
S
e
r
v
 
C
C
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
0
0
0
0
1
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
2
5
 
 
8
5
2
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
6
5
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
3
6
2
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
,
5
8
1
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
2
5
 
Y
o
u
t
h
 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
 
C
C
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
1
4
8
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
0
8
 
 
8
5
2
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
7
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
7
1
7
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
4
,
2
9
8
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
0
8
 
R
e
s
o
u
r
c
e
 
C
o
n
n
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
T
Y
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
C
E

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
1
6
3
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
0
5
 
 
8
5
2
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
7
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
1
,
7
9
8
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
0
5
 
B
e
y
o
n
d
 
B
l
u
e
 
-
 
C
R
I
S
I
S
 
N
U
R
S
E
R
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
1
7
0
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
1
2
 
 
8
5
2
2
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
7
2
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
4
,
6
8
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
6
,
4
7
9
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
1
2
 
F
a
m
i
l
y
 
D
e
v
e
l
o
 
D
E
V
E
L
O
P
M
E
N
T
A
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
1
7
5
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
1
5
 
 
8
5
2
2
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
7
3
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
1
3
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
3
,
6
1
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
1
5
 
C
U
 
C
h
a
n
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
D
O
N
 
M
O
Y
E
R
 
B
O
Y
S
 
&
 
G
I
R

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
1
8
5
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
0
1
 
 
8
5
2
3
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
7
3
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
1
6
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
8
,
7
7
6
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
0
1
 
F
a
m
i
l
y
 
S
u
p
p
o
r
 
E
A
S
T
 
C
N
T
R
L
 
I
L
 
R
E
F
U
G
E

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
2
4
2
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
1
1
 
 
8
5
2
3
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
7
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
,
1
4
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
1
,
9
1
6
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
1
1
 
P
e
e
r
 
S
u
p
p
o
r
t
 
 
G
R
O
W
 
I
N
 
I
L
L
I
N
O
I
S
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
4
6
4
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
3
5
 
 
8
5
2
4
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
8
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
6
6
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
3
,
5
8
2
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
3
5
 
S
e
x
u
a
l
 
T
r
a
u
m
a
 
R
A
P
E
,
 
A
D
V
O
C
A
C
Y
,
 
C
O
U
N

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
4
6
4
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
0
2
 
 
8
5
2
4
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
8
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
2
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
9
,
8
3
2
.
0
0

74



C
ha

m
pa

ig
n 

C
ou

nt
y,

 IL

A
C

C
O

U
N

T 
D

E
TA

IL
 H

IS
TO

R
Y

 F
O

R
 2

02
5 

03
 T

O
 2

02
5 

03

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
4
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
5
 
1
4
:
5
2

U
s
e
r
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
c
m
w
1
1
0
0
6

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
l
a
c
t
h
s
t

P
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
5

O
R
G
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
J
E
C
T
 
P
R
O
J
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T
 
L
E
D
G
E
R

 
Y
R
/
P
R
 
 
 
 
J
N
L
 
E
F
F
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
S
R
C
 
R
E
F
1
 
 
 
R
E
F
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
F
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
#
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
M
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
0
2
 
S
e
x
u
a
l
 
V
i
o
l
e
n
 
R
A
P
E
,
 
A
D
V
O
C
A
C
Y
,
 
C
O
U
N

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
4
8
8
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
1
9
 
 
8
5
2
4
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
8
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
0
5
2
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
6
,
8
8
4
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
1
9
 
B
e
n
e
f
i
t
s
 
C
a
s
e
 
R
O
S
E
C
R
A
N
C
E
,
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
4
8
8
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
2
0
 
 
8
5
2
4
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
8
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
4
,
8
8
4
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
2
0
 
C
r
i
m
i
n
a
l
 
J
u
s
t
 
R
O
S
E
C
R
A
N
C
E
,
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
4
8
8
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
3
0
 
 
8
5
2
4
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
8
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
,
8
3
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
0
,
7
1
7
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
3
0
 
C
r
i
s
i
s
 
C
o
-
R
e
s
 
R
O
S
E
C
R
A
N
C
E
,
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
4
8
8
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
2
3
 
 
8
5
2
4
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
8
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
3
3
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
9
,
0
5
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
2
3
 
R
e
c
o
v
e
r
y
 
H
o
m
e
 
R
O
S
E
C
R
A
N
C
E
,
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
5
9
7
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
4
2
 
 
8
5
2
2
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
8
3
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
7
2
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
5
,
7
7
6
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
4
2
 
C
-
U
 
E
a
r
l
y
 
 
 
 
 
U
R
B
A
N
A
 
A
D
U
L
T
 
E
D
U
C
A
T
I

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
8
0
9
2
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
0
7
 
 
8
5
2
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
7
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
6
6
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
6
,
4
4
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
0
7
 
C
o
u
r
a
g
e
 
C
o
n
n
e
 
C
O
U
R
A
G
E
 
C
O
N
N
E
C
T
I
O
N
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
8
2
5
9
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
4
4
 
 
8
5
2
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
5
1
5
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
2
0
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
3
,
6
5
3
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
4
4
 
C
H
W
 
O
u
t
r
e
a
c
h
 
 
C
H
A
M
P
A
I
G
N
 
C
O
U
N
T
Y
 
H
E
A

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
8
2
5
9
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
6
6
 
 
8
5
2
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
5
1
5
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
7
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
2
,
4
0
3
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
6
6
 
D
i
s
a
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
A
p
 
C
H
A
M
P
A
I
G
N
 
C
O
U
N
T
Y
 
H
E
A

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
8
2
5
9
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
4
5
 
 
8
5
2
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
5
1
5
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
5
1
2
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
9
,
9
1
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
4
5
 
J
u
s
t
i
c
e
 
I
n
v
o
l
 
C
H
A
M
P
A
I
G
N
 
C
O
U
N
T
Y
 
H
E
A

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
8
3
0
5
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
1
8
 
 
8
5
2
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
7
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
9
7
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
6
,
8
9
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
1
8
 
E
C
H
O
 
H
o
u
s
i
n
g
 
 
C
U
N
N
I
N
G
H
A
M
 
C
H
I
L
D
R
E
N
S

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
8
3
0
5
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
3
6
 
 
8
5
2
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
7
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
,
5
1
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
0
,
4
0
1
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
3
6
 
F
a
m
i
l
i
e
s
 
S
t
r
o
 
C
U
N
N
I
N
G
H
A
M
 
C
H
I
L
D
R
E
N
S

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
8
3
4
3
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
1
4
 
 
8
5
2
3
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
7
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
2
,
9
0
1
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
1
4
 
C
o
u
n
s
e
l
i
n
g
 
 
 
 
F
A
M
I
L
Y
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
O
F
 
C
H

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
8
3
4
3
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
1
6
 
 
8
5
2
3
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
7
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
4
1
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
5
,
3
1
1
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
1
6
 
S
e
l
f
 
H
e
l
p
 
C
e
n
 
F
A
M
I
L
Y
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
O
F
 
C
H

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

75



C
ha

m
pa

ig
n 

C
ou

nt
y,

 IL

A
C

C
O

U
N

T 
D

E
TA

IL
 H

IS
TO

R
Y

 F
O

R
 2

02
5 

03
 T

O
 2

02
5 

03

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
4
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
5
 
1
4
:
5
2

U
s
e
r
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
c
m
w
1
1
0
0
6

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
l
a
c
t
h
s
t

P
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
6

O
R
G
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
J
E
C
T
 
P
R
O
J
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T
 
L
E
D
G
E
R

 
Y
R
/
P
R
 
 
 
 
J
N
L
 
E
F
F
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
S
R
C
 
R
E
F
1
 
 
 
R
E
F
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
F
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
#
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
M
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
8
3
4
3
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
1
7
 
 
8
5
2
3
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
7
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
8
6
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
0
,
1
7
6
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
1
7
 
S
e
n
i
o
r
 
C
o
u
n
s
e
 
F
A
M
I
L
Y
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
O
F
 
C
H

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
8
4
1
3
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
1
3
 
 
8
5
2
3
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
8
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
7
,
6
7
6
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
1
3
 
M
e
n
t
a
l
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
 
P
R
O
M
I
S
E
 
H
E
A
L
T
H
C
A
R
E
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
8
4
1
3
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
4
1
 
 
8
5
2
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
8
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
9
2
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
6
,
5
9
9
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
4
-
0
4
1
 
W
e
l
l
n
e
s
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
R
O
M
I
S
E
 
H
E
A
L
T
H
C
A
R
E
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
8
8
0
5
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
2
1
 
 
8
5
2
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
6
9
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
,
3
9
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
7
,
9
9
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
2
1
 
S
h
e
l
t
e
r
 
C
a
s
e
 
 
C
-
U
 
A
T
 
H
O
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
2
0
1
7
3
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
2
2
 
 
8
5
2
3
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
5
1
6
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
1
3
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
3
,
1
2
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
0
7
2
5
A
 
 
M
a
r
'
2
5
 
M
H
B
2
5
-
0
2
2
 
A
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
,
 
C
a
r
 
G
R
E
A
T
E
R
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
T
Y
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
D
G
E
R
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E
S
 
-
-
-
 
D
E
B
I
T
S
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
3
,
1
2
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
R
E
D
I
T
S
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
3
,
1
2
0
.
0
0

  2
0
0
0
0
1
5
4
 
5
0
2
0
4
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
Q
U
I
P
 
L
E
A
S
E
/
E
Q
U
I
P
 
R
E
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
4
0
2
 
0
3
/
2
0
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
6
8
7
 
2
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
7
0
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
8
3
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
9
.
0
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
9
.
0
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
2
8
2
5
A
 
 
J
a
n
'
2
5
 
C
o
p
i
e
r
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
0
5
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
X
E
R
O
X
 
C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
I
O
N
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
D
G
E
R
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E
S
 
-
-
-
 
D
E
B
I
T
S
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
9
.
0
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
R
E
D
I
T
S
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
9
.
0
6

  2
0
0
0
0
1
5
4
 
5
0
2
0
4
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
O
F
T
W
A
R
E
 
L
I
C
E
N
S
E
 
&
 
S
A
A
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
4
0
2
 
0
3
/
2
0
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
6
3
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
6
7
5
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
8
2
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
1
0
7
.
9
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
1
0
7
.
9
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
2
8
2
5
A
 
 
A
d
o
b
e
 
3
/
1
0
/
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
I
S
A
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
4
0
2
 
0
3
/
2
0
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
6
3
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
6
7
5
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
8
2
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
8
3
5
.
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
7
2
7
.
2
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
2
8
2
5
A
 
 
A
d
o
b
e
 
3
/
1
0
/
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
I
S
A
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
D
G
E
R
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E
S
 
-
-
-
 
D
E
B
I
T
S
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
8
3
5
.
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
R
E
D
I
T
S
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
1
0
7
.
9
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
7
2
7
.
2
8

  2
0
0
0
0
1
5
4
 
5
0
2
0
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
H
O
N
E
/
I
N
T
E
R
N
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
1
2
0
 
0
3
/
0
6
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
2
6
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
5
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
1
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
4
.
9
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
4
.
9
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
1
4
2
5
A
 
 
I
n
t
e
r
n
e
t
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
4
/
4
/
2
5
 
-
 
5
/
3
/
 
I
3
 
B
R
O
A
D
B
A
N
D
 
-
 
C
U
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

76



C
ha

m
pa

ig
n 

C
ou

nt
y,

 IL

A
C

C
O

U
N

T 
D

E
TA

IL
 H

IS
TO

R
Y

 F
O

R
 2

02
5 

03
 T

O
 2

02
5 

03

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
4
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
5
 
1
4
:
5
2

U
s
e
r
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
c
m
w
1
1
0
0
6

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
l
a
c
t
h
s
t

P
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
7

O
R
G
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
J
E
C
T
 
P
R
O
J
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T
 
L
E
D
G
E
R

 
Y
R
/
P
R
 
 
 
 
J
N
L
 
E
F
F
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
S
R
C
 
R
E
F
1
 
 
 
R
E
F
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
F
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
#
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
M
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E

 
2
5
/
0
3
 
 
 
 
2
2
9
 
0
3
/
1
1
/
2
5
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
8
2
8
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
9
5
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
4
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
1
.
6
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
6
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
3
2
1
2
5
A
 
 
M
H
B
 
P
h
o
n
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
N
S
O
L
I
D
A
T
E
D
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
D
G
E
R
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E
S
 
-
-
-
 
D
E
B
I
T
S
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
6
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
R
E
D
I
T
S
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
6
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
R
A
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
-
-
-
 
D
E
B
I
T
S
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
6
,
8
6
0
.
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
R
E
D
I
T
S
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
1
0
7
.
9
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
6
,
7
5
2
.
2
7
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
 
R
e
c
o
r
d
s
 
p
r
i
n
t
e
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
 
E
N
D
 
O
F
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
-
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
C
h
r
i
s
 
M
.
 
W
i
l
s
o
n
 
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

77



78



79



80



81



82



 M
   

E 
  M

  
B

   
E 

 R
   

S 

Ch
am

pa
ig

n 
Co

un
ty

 C
om

m
un

ity
 C

oa
liti

on
 

ch
am

pa
ig

nc
om

m
un

ity
co

al
iti

on
.o

rg
 

Ch
am

pa
ig

n 
Co

un
ty

 M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 B
oa

rd
 

cc
m

hd
db

rd
s.

or
g 

Ci
rc

le 
of

 F
rie

nd
s 

Ad
ul

t D
ay

 C
en

te
r 

Se
ni

or
s 

an
d 

ad
ul

ts
 w

ith
 a

 d
is

ab
ilit

y 
so

ci
al

iz
e 

in
 a

 h
om

el
ik

e,
 

su
pp

or
tiv

e 
an

d 
sa

fe
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t, 
w

ith
 m

ed
ic

al
 m

on
ito

rin
g,

 
pe

rs
on

al
 c

ar
e 

as
si

st
an

ce
, s

up
er

vi
si

on
 fo

r s
af

et
y 

co
nc

er
ns

, a
nd

 
ex

er
ci

se
/th

er
ap

y. 
 S

pe
ci

al
iz

ed
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
an

d 
en

ha
nc

e 
ca

pa
bi

lit
ie

s,
 p

ro
vi

de
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r s

uc
ce

ss
 fo

r e
ac

h 
cu

st
om

er
, 

an
d 

ke
ep

 th
e 

m
in

d 
an

d 
bo

dy
 a

ct
iv

e.
 “O

pe
ni

ng
 M

in
ds

 T
hr

ou
gh

 A
rt”

 
en

ab
le

s 
in

di
vi

du
al

s 
w

ith
 d

em
en

tia
 to

 e
xp

re
ss

 th
ei

r v
oi

ce
 in

 th
e 

ro
le

 
of

 a
rti

st
. T

ra
in

ed
 v

ol
un

te
er

s 
pr

ov
id

e 
ar

t m
at

er
ia

ls
 d

ur
in

g 
th

is
 

cr
ea

tiv
e 

jo
ur

ne
y;

 th
e 

ar
tis

ts
 e

nj
oy

 th
e 

in
te

rg
en

er
at

io
na

l c
on

ne
ct

io
n 

an
d 

cr
ea

te
 a

  l
eg

ac
y 

of
 in

di
vi

du
al

iz
ed

 a
rti

st
ic

 e
xp

re
ss

io
n.

 
ce

nt
er

@
ci

rc
le

of
fri

en
ds

ad
c.

ne
t w

w
w.

ci
rc

le
of

fri
en

ds
ad

c.
ne

t 

Co
ur

ag
e 

Co
nn

ec
tio

n 
Fo

r v
ic

tim
s 

an
d 

su
rv

iv
or

s 
of

 d
om

es
tic

 v
io

le
nc

e,
 a

 c
on

tin
uu

m
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

es
 s

o 
th

at
 in

di
vi

du
al

s 
an

d 
fa

m
ilie

s 
ca

n 
ac

hi
ev

e 
sa

fe
ty,

 
st

ab
ilit

y, 
an

d 
se

lf-
su

ffi
ci

en
cy

. W
e 

be
lie

ve
 in

 th
e 

rig
ht

 o
f e

ve
ry

 
pe

rs
on

 to
 s

af
et

y 
an

d 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l o

f e
ve

ry
 p

er
so

n 
fo

r s
uc

ce
ss

. A
 

fa
m

ily
’s 

im
m

ed
ia

te
 s

af
et

y 
is

 in
tim

at
el

y 
co

nn
ec

te
d 

to
 e

ac
h 

pe
rs

on
’s 

lo
ng

-te
rm

 s
uc

ce
ss

. A
 c

om
m

un
ity

’s 
st

ab
ilit

y 
is

 th
re

at
en

ed
 w

he
n 

an
y 

fa
m

ily
 is

 in
 d

an
ge

r. 
co

ur
ag

ec
on

ne
ct

io
n.

or
g 

H
ot

lin
e:

 (2
17

) 
38

4-
43

90

Cr
isi

s 
Nu

rs
er

y 
C

re
at

es
 a

n 
"Is

la
nd

 o
f S

af
et

y"
 d

ed
ic

at
ed

 to
 th

e 
pr

ev
en

tio
n 

of
 c

hi
ld

 
ab

us
e 

an
d 

ne
gl

ec
t b

y 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

24
-h

ou
r e

m
er

ge
nc

y 
ca

re
 fo

r 
ch

ild
re

n 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t t
o 

st
re

ng
th

en
 fa

m
ilie

s 
in

 c
ris

is
. A

 b
ea

co
n 

of
 

lig
ht

 fo
r c

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

fa
m

ilie
s 

w
ho

 a
re

 a
t r

is
k 

of
 a

bu
se

 o
r n

eg
le

ct
 in

 
ou

r c
om

m
un

ity
; w

e 
en

su
re

 th
at

 th
e 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
su

pp
or

t a
nd

 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

re
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 e

ve
ry

 c
hi

ld
 a

nd
 fa

m
ily

 in
 n

ee
d.

 
cr

is
is

nu
rs

er
y.n

et
 C

ris
is

 L
in

e:
 (2

17
) 3

37
-2

73
0 

CU
 A

bl
e 

C
ar

eg
iv

er
s 

to
 in

di
vi

du
al

s 
w

ith
 d

is
ab

ilit
ie

s 
ca

n 
se

ek
 a

dv
ic

e 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t, 
sh

ar
e 

re
so

ur
ce

s,
 n

et
w

or
k,

 a
nd

 fi
nd

 
fri

en
ds

hi
p.
 fa

ce
bo

ok
.c

om
/g

ro
up

s/
C

U
Ab

le
 o

r c
ua

bl
e.

or
g 

De
pr

es
sio

n 
an

d 
Bi

po
lar

 S
up

po
rt 

Al
lia

nc
e 

U-
C 

Su
pp

or
t m

ee
tin

gs
 fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 h
av

e 
de

pr
es

si
on

, b
ip

ol
ar

 
di

so
rd

er
, a

nd
/o

r r
el

at
ed

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 p
ro

bl
em

s,
 w

he
th

er
 fo

rm
al

ly
 

di
ag

no
se

d 
or

 n
ot

. W
e 

al
so

 o
ffe

r s
up

po
rt 

fo
r t

he
 fr

ie
nd

s 
an

d 
fa

m
ilie

s 
of

 th
os

e 
w

ho
 s

tru
gg

le
 w

ith
 th

es
e 

illn
es

se
s.

 T
he

re
 a

re
 n

o 
do

ct
or

s 
or

 th
er

ap
is

ts
 o

n 
st

af
f. 

W
e 

be
lie

ve
 th

at
 th

e 
su

pp
or

t a
nd

 
nu

rtu
rin

g 
th

at
 p

ee
rs

 p
ro

vi
de

 is
 a

n 
in

te
gr

al
 p

ar
t o

f r
ec

ov
er

y. 
Th

er
e 

ar
e 

se
ve

ra
l p

ee
r s

up
po

rt 
gr

ou
p 

m
ee

tin
gs

 e
ac

h 
w

ee
k,

 a
t 7

pm
 in

 
Au

di
to

riu
m

 C
 o

f O
SF

 H
ea

rt 
of

 M
ar

y 
M

ed
ic

al
 C

en
te

r,1
40

0 
W

. P
ar

k 
St

re
et

, U
rb

an
a.

 T
ue

sd
ay

 m
ee

tin
gs

 a
re

 o
pe

n 
to

 a
ll 

w
ho

 h
av

e 
a 

m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 c
on

di
tio

n,
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
th

ei
r s

up
po

rt 
pe

op
le

 o
r a

ny
on

e 
w

ho
 h

as
 c

on
ce

rn
s 

ab
ou

t a
 lo

ve
d 

on
e,

 a
s 

ar
e 

m
ee

tin
gs

 o
n 

th
e 

fir
st

 
an

d 
th

ird
 T

hu
rs

da
y 

ea
ch

 m
on

th
. F

rid
ay

 m
ee

tin
gs

 a
re

 o
pe

n 
to

 o
nl

y 
th

os
e 

w
ith

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 c
on

di
tio

ns
. F

or
 d

et
ai

ls
 o

r c
ha

ng
es

, s
ee

 
db

sa
cu

.o
rg

/ 

DS
C 

(D
ev

elo
pm

en
ta

l S
er

vic
es

 C
en

te
r) 

Ad
ul

t s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 fo
cu

se
d 

an
d 

ba
se

d,
 w

ith
 a

n 
em

ph
as

is
 o

n 
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 to

 e
nh

an
ce

 th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f l
ife

 a
s 

de
fin

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
pe

rs
on

. A
re

as
 o

f s
up

po
rt 

fo
r a

du
lts

 in
cl

ud
e 

Em
pl

oy
m

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s,

 R
es

id
en

tia
l S

er
vi

ce
s,

 C
om

m
un

ity
 D

ay
 

Se
rv

ic
es

, a
nd

 C
as

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t. 
Pr

og
ra

m
s 

of
fe

r s
up

po
rt 

in
 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t, 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t a

nd
 s

up
po

rte
d 

liv
in

g,
 re

cr
ea

tio
na

l a
nd

 
vo

lu
nt

ee
r o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s,

 s
er

vi
ce

 c
oo

rd
in

at
io

n,
 s

el
f-a

dv
oc

ac
y, 

an
d 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n.

 F
am

ily
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

ffe
rs

 in
fa

nt
s,

 to
dd

le
rs

, a
nd

 
fa

m
ilie

s 
in

-h
om

e 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 th
er

ap
ie

s,
 p

la
yg

ro
up

s,
 s

oc
ia

l w
or

k 
se

rv
ic

es
, a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ta

l s
cr

ee
ni

ng
s.

 D
SC

 s
up

po
rts

 p
eo

pl
e 

in
 

liv
in

g 
a 

ric
h 

an
d 

m
ea

ni
ng

fu
l l

ife
. d

sc
-il

lin
oi

s.
or

g 
an

d 
fa

ce
bo

ok
.c

om
/

D
SC

C
ha

m
pa

ig
n/

  

di
sA

BI
LI

TY
 R

es
ou

rc
e 

Ex
po

 
di

sa
bi

lit
yr

es
ou

rc
ee

xp
o.

or
g/

 

Fa
m

ily
 S

er
vi

ce
 o

f C
ha

m
pa

ig
n 

C
ou

nt
y 

Ex
pe

rti
se

, r
es

ou
rc

es
, a

nd
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
to

 h
el

p 
yo

u 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

ly
 

m
ee

t l
ife

’s 
ch

an
ge

s 
an

d 
ch

al
le

ng
es

. O
ur

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r s
en

io
rs

 a
nd

 
th

ei
r f

am
ilie

s 
in

cl
ud

e 
in

-h
om

e 
ca

re
, m

ea
l a

ss
is

ta
nc

e,
 c

ar
eg

iv
er

 
su

pp
or

t, 
tra

ns
po

rta
tio

n,
 fr

ie
nd

ly
 c

al
le

r, 
he

al
th

y 
ag

in
g 

cl
as

se
s,

 a
nd

 
vo

lu
nt

ee
r s

up
po

rt.
 F

am
ilie

s 
an

d 
pe

op
le

 o
f a

ll 
ag

es
 re

ce
iv

e 
co

un
se

lin
g,

 p
ar

en
tin

g 
su

pp
or

t, 
an

d 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t a

nd
 re

fe
rra

l 
to

 c
om

m
un

ity
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

se
lf-

he
lp

 g
ro

up
s.

 w
w

w.
fa

m
se

rv
cc

.o
rg

, 
ca

ll 
(2

17
) 3

52
-0

09
9 

or
 e

m
ai

l: 
in

fo
@

fa
m

ily
se

rv
ic

ec
c.

or
g 

G
RO

W
 in

 Ill
in

oi
s 

D
ev

ot
ed

 to
 c

om
m

un
ity

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 th
ro

ug
h 

a 
w

el
l-e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
pr

og
ra

m
 o

f s
el

f-h
el

p 
gr

ou
ps

…
 s

up
po

rt 
gr

ou
p 

m
ee

tin
gs

 h
el

d 
w

ee
kl

y, 
as

 w
el

l a
s 

pe
rs

on
al

 c
on

ta
ct

 th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
ye

ar
. P

eo
pl

e 
co

m
e 

to
 G

RO
W

 w
ith

 d
iv

er
se

 p
ro

bl
em

s 
in

 li
vi

ng
, s

uc
h 

as
 m

en
ta

l 
he

al
th

 is
su

es
, e

m
ot

io
na

l t
ro

ub
le

s,
 o

r d
iffi

cu
lty

 c
op

in
g 

w
ith

 g
rie

f, 
lo

ne
lin

es
s,

 a
nx

ie
ty,

 o
r s

tre
ss

. T
hr

ou
gh

 le
ad

er
sh

ip
 a

nd
 c

om
m

un
ity

 
bu

ild
in

g,
 in

di
vi

du
al

s 
at

te
nd

in
g 

w
ee

kl
y 

gr
ou

p 
m

ee
tin

gs
 a

re
 g

iv
en

 
th

e 
to

ol
s 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t t

o 
he

lp
 th

em
 in

 th
ei

r r
ec

ov
er

y 
an

d 
pe

rs
on

al
 

gr
ow

th
. g

ro
w

in
am

er
ic

a.
or

g/
gr

ow
-in

-il
lin

oi
s 

 (2
17

) 3
52

-6
98

9 

Na
tio

na
l A

llia
nc

e 
on

 M
en

ta
l Il

ln
es

s 
- C

ha
m

pa
ig

n 
Se

rv
in

g 
Ea

st
 C

en
tra

l I
llin

oi
s,

 N
AM

I C
ha

m
pa

ig
n 

C
ou

nt
y 

pr
ov

id
es

 
sp

ea
ke

rs
 a

nd
 p

re
se

nt
at

io
ns

 to
 lo

ca
l o

rg
an

iz
at

io
ns

, e
du

ca
tio

na
l 

in
st

itu
tio

ns
, a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
 g

ro
up

s.
 D

ed
ic

at
ed

 to
 s

up
po

rti
ng

 th
os

e 
af

fe
ct

ed
 b

y 
m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 c

on
di

tio
ns

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 p

ee
rs

 a
nd

 fa
m

ilie
s,

 
N

AM
I C

ha
m

pa
ig

n 
fo

cu
se

d 
on

 s
up

po
rt,

 e
du

ca
tio

n,
 a

nd
 a

dv
oc

ac
y 

ef
fo

rts
 to

 d
es

tig
m

at
iz

e 
m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
. N

AM
I i

s 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 s

ha
re

 
re

se
ar

ch
 a

bo
ut

 m
en

ta
l i

lln
es

s,
 p

er
so

na
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

es
, a

nd
 s

up
po

rt 
gr

ou
ps

 w
ith

 th
e 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

ity
. N

AM
I C

ha
m

pa
ig

n 
pr

ov
id

es
 

sp
ea

ke
rs

 fo
r C

ris
is

 In
te

rv
en

tio
n 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 o
f fi

rs
t r

es
po

nd
er

s,
 a

nd
 

ad
vo

ca
te

s 
lo

ca
lly

 a
nd

 s
ta

te
w

id
e 

fo
r a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 fu

nd
in

g 
an

d 
le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

, w
hi

le
 o

ffe
rin

g 
FR

EE
 

pr
og

ra
m

m
in

g 
lik

e 
Fa

m
ily

-to
-F

am
ily

 c
la

ss
es

 fo
r f

am
ily

 a
nd

 fr
ie

nd
s 

of
 

in
di

vi
du

al
s 

w
ith

 li
ve

d 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

of
 a

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 c
on

di
tio

n.
 

in
fo

@
na

m
ic

ha
m

pa
ig

n.
or

g 
(2

17
) 4

19
-5

34
5.

 

Th
e 

Pa
vil

io
n 

Ho
sp

ita
l &

 B
eh

av
io

ra
l H

ea
lth

 S
ys

te
m

 
Tr

ea
tm

en
t f

or
 p

sy
ch

ia
tri

c 
an

d 
ad

di
ct

iv
e 

di
so

rd
er

s 
fo

r C
hi

ld
re

n,
 

Ad
ol

es
ce

nt
s,

 A
du

lts
 a

nd
 th

e 
Se

ni
or

 p
op

ul
at

io
n…

 a
cu

te
 in

pa
tie

nt
 

tre
at

m
en

t, 
de

to
xi

fic
at

io
n 

an
d 

pa
rti

al
 h

os
pi

ta
liz

at
io

n,
 in

di
vi

du
al

, f
am

ily
 

an
d 

gr
ou

p 
th

er
ap

y, 
ps

yc
ho

 e
du

ca
tio

na
l g

ro
up

s 
an

d 
m

ed
ic

al
 

in
te

rv
en

tio
n.

 T
he

 P
av

ilio
n 

Fo
un

da
tio

n 
Sc

ho
ol

 fo
r y

ou
th

 g
ra

de
s 

3-
12

 
w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ilit
ie

s 
an

d 
be

ha
vi

or
 d

is
or

de
rs

. A
ls

o 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

is
 T

he
 

Pa
vi

lio
n 

Re
si

de
nt

ia
l T

re
at

m
en

t C
en

te
r f

or
 y

ou
th

. 2
4/

7 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 c

ar
e 

an
d 

as
se

ss
m

en
t a

t (
21

7)
 3

73
-1

70
0 

or
 o

ut
si

de
 o

f C
ha

m
pa

ig
n 

C
ou

nt
y 

(8
00

)3
73

-1
70

0 
 p

av
ilio

nh
os

pi
ta

l.c
om

Po
si

tiv
e 

C
en

te
re

d 
Ar

t T
he

ra
py

, L
LC

 
Pr

ov
id

es
 s

up
po

rt 
th

ro
ug

h 
ar

t m
ak

in
g 

w
hi

le
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

en
du

ra
nc

e 
fo

r 
ch

al
le

ng
in

g 
m

om
en

ts
. T

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
re

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
vi

rtu
al

ly
 

an
d 

in
 p

er
so

n:
 P

os
iti

ve
 C

en
te

re
d 

Ar
t T

he
ra

py
; C

hr
is

t C
en

te
re

d 
C

hr
is

tia
n 

Ar
t T

he
ra

py
™

; C
og

ni
tiv

e 
Be

ha
vi

or
al

 A
rt 

Th
er

ap
y 

(C
BA

T)
; 

D
ia

le
ct

ic
al

 B
eh

av
io

r A
rt 

Th
er

ap
y;
 A

rt 
Re

si
lie

nc
e 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 (A
RT

); 
M

ed
ita

tio
n;
 a

nd
 N

eu
ro

gr
ap

hi
c 

Ar
t. 

N
o 

ar
t e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
re

qu
ire

d.
 P

ho
ne

 
(7

79
)4

29
-2

35
0.

Ro
se

cr
an

ce
 C

en
tra

l I
llin

oi
s 

Be
ha

vi
or

al
 h

ea
lth

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r c
hi

ld
re

n,
 a

do
le

sc
en

ts
, a

du
lts

, a
nd

 
fa

m
ilie

s…
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 a
dd

ic
tio

n 
se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r a
do

le
sc

en
ts

 a
nd

 
ad

ul
ts

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 p

re
ve

nt
io

n,
 in

te
rv

en
tio

n,
 d

et
ox

ifi
ca

tio
n,

 in
pa

tie
nt

 a
nd

 
ou

tp
at

ie
nt

 tr
ea

tm
en

t, 
ex

pe
rie

nt
ia

l t
he

ra
pi

es
, d

ua
l-d

ia
gn

os
is

 c
ar

e,
 a

nd
 

fa
m

ily
 e

du
ca

tio
n…

 a
ls

o 
of

fe
rs

 h
ig

h-
qu

al
ity

, e
ffi

ci
en

t, 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

ou
tp

at
ie

nt
 m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

fo
r c

hi
ld

re
n,

 a
du

lts
, a

nd
 fa

m
ilie

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
a 

va
rie

ty
 o

f p
ro

gr
am

s.
 ro

se
cr

an
ce

.o
rg

/c
en

tra
l-i

llin
oi

s 
(2

17
) 

39
8-

80
80

Sw
an

n 
Sp

ec
ial

 C
ar

e 
Ce

nt
er

 
C

ar
e 

fo
r p

er
so

ns
 w

ith
 s

ev
er

e 
an

d 
pr

of
ou

nd
 in

te
lle

ct
ua

l d
is

ab
ilit

ie
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

ou
r r

es
id

en
tia

l n
ur

si
ng

 c
ar

e 
pr

og
ra

m
, a

du
lt 

da
y 

ca
re

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 
pr

og
ra

m
, a

nd
 a

cc
re

di
te

d 
no

n 
pu

bl
ic

 s
ch

oo
l. 

Im
ag

in
e 

no
t b

ei
ng

 a
bl

e 
to

 
FU

LL
Y 

ex
pr

es
s 

yo
ur

se
lf 

- y
ou

r w
an

ts
, n

ee
ds

, c
ho

ic
es

, d
re

am
s,

 a
bi

lit
ie

s 
-a

nd
 re

ly
in

g 
on

 o
th

er
s 

fo
r s

im
pl

e,
 e

ve
ry

da
y 

ta
sk

s.
 Im

ag
in

e 
liv

in
g 

a
pr

ed
ic

ta
bl

e,
 ro

ut
in

e 
lif

e 
in

 a
n 

un
co

op
er

at
iv

e 
bo

dy
. T

hi
s 

is
 th

e 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

of
 o

ur
 re

si
de

nt
s 

an
d 

th
e 

dr
iv

in
g 

fo
rc

e 
be

hi
nd

 o
ur

 
in

no
va

tiv
e 

Ar
t T

he
ra

py
 p

ro
gr

am
; r

es
id

en
ts

 a
re

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
a 

un
iq

ue
 

m
ea

ns
 o

f e
xp

re
ss

in
g 

th
em

se
lv

es
 w

hi
le

 e
xp

an
di

ng
 th

ei
r s

en
se

s 
an

d 
le

ar
ni

ng
 n

ew
 c

on
ce

pt
s 

an
d 

sk
ills

. P
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 I/
D

D
 c

an
 a

nd
 d

o 
cr

ea
te

 
be

au
tif

ul
, e

xp
re

ss
iv

e 
pi

ec
es

 o
f a

rt.
 O

ur
 p

ur
po

se
 is

 to
 e

nh
an

ce
 th

ei
r 

liv
es

 b
y 

ex
ce

ed
in

g 
ex

pe
ct

at
io

ns
 th

ro
ug

h 
co

m
pa

ss
io

n 
& 

lo
ve

. 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 w

el
co

m
ed

: s
w

an
nc

ar
e.

or
g.

 (2
17

) 3
56

-5
16

4 

UI
UC

 S
ch

oo
l o

f S
oc

ial
 W

or
k 

Th
e 

Sc
ho

ol
 o

f S
oc

ia
l W

or
k 

en
ha

nc
es

 p
eo

pl
e’s

 h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 w

el
lb

ei
ng

 
an

d 
em

po
w

er
s 

in
di

vi
du

al
s,

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

, a
nd

 o
rg

an
iz

at
io

ns
 to

 
di

sm
an

tle
 in

eq
ui

ta
bl

e 
sy

st
em

s 
an

d 
pr

om
ot

e 
so

ci
al

 ju
st

ic
e.

 W
e 

co
nd

uc
t 

cu
tti

ng
-e

dg
e 

in
te

rd
is

ci
pl

in
ar

y 
re

se
ar

ch
 w

ith
 re

al
 w

or
ld

 im
pa

ct
, e

du
ca

te
 

st
ud

en
ts

 to
 b

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

an
d 

in
no

va
tiv

e 
pr

ac
tit

io
ne

rs
, a

nd
 c

ol
la

bo
ra

te
 

w
ith

 c
om

m
un

ity
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

to
 re

im
ag

in
e 

an
d 

de
si

gn
 s

ol
ut

io
ns

 to
 s

oc
ia

l 
ch

al
le

ng
es

. s
oc

ia
lw

or
k@

illi
no

is
.e

du
 (2

17
) 3

33
-2

26
1

83

https://champaigncountyair.com/member/champaign-community-coalition/champaigncommunitycoalition.org
http://ccmcddbrds.org
mailto:center@circleoffriendsadc.net
https://champaigncountyair.com/member/circle-of-friends-adult-day-center/www.circleoffriendsadc.net
http://courageconnection.org
http://crisisnursery.net
https://www.facebook.com/groups/CUAble
http://cuable.org
http://cudbsa.org/
https://champaigncountyair.com/member/the-pavilion-hospital-and-behavioral-health-system/pavilionhospital.com
http://rosecrance.org/central-illinois
mailto:socialwork@illinois.edu
http://dsc-illinois.org
http://facebook.com/DSCChampaign/
http://facebook.com/DSCChampaign/
http://disabilityresourceexpo.org/
http://www.famservcc.org
mailto:info@familyservicecc.org
http://growinamerica.org/grow-in-illinois
mailto:info@namichampaign.org


Up
co

m
in

g 
Ev

en
ts

 
“C

ol
or

Bo
ok

” 
Sc

re
en

in
g 

R
og

er
 E

be
rt

’s
 F

ilm
 F

es
tiv

al
 

Ap
ril

 2
3-

26
, V

irg
in

ia
 T

he
at

re



AI
R

 In
do

or
 A

rt
 S

ho
w

 
Ap

ril
 2

5-
26

, V
irg

in
ia

 T
he

at
re

 2
nd

 fl
oo

r


Jo
in

 U
s 

   
   

   
   

Be
 In

clu
de

d 

En
d 

St
ig

m
a 

ch
am

pa
ig

nc
ou

nt
yA

IR
.c

om
 

fa
ce

bo
ok

.c
om

/a
llia

nc
ef

or
AI

R/
 

In
st

ag
ra

m
 @

all
ian

ce
fo

rin
clu

sio
na

nd
re

sp
ec

t 

W
hy

 A
rt?

 
“A

rt 
is 

im
po

rta
nt

 b
ec

au
se

 it
 a

llo
w

s 
us

 to
 s

ha
re

 
w

ith
 e

ac
h 

ot
he

r w
ha

t i
s 

m
os

t h
um

an
 w

ith
in

 u
s 

an
d 

w
ha

t i
s 

m
os

t b
ea

ut
ifu

l o
ut

sid
e 

of
 u

s.
” 

- D
av

id
 K

op
ac

z,
 M

D,
 a

rti
st

, a
ut

ho
r


W
e 

us
e 

ar
t a

nd
 fi

lm
 to

 s
ho

w
 th

at
 s

tig
m

a 
aff

ec
ts

 
us

 in
di

vi
du

al
ly

 a
nd

 c
ol

le
ct

iv
el

y. 
W

e 
pr

om
ot

e 
en

tre
pr

en
eu

rs
 a

nd
 in

no
va

to
rs

, a
nd

 w
e 

ce
le

br
at

e 
in

cl
us

io
n 

be
ca

us
e 

ev
er

y 
m

em
be

r o
f t

hi
s 

co
m

m
un

ity
 h

as
 a

 v
al

ua
bl

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
to

 m
ak

e.

Su
pp

or
te

rs
 o

f A
IR

 A
rti

st
s 

Ar
t H

ea
ls

, B
oo

t B
oo

ks
, B

ar
ba

ra
 B

re
ss

ne
r,


C
af

e 
Ko

pi
 a

nd
 C

af
e 

Zo
jo

 (w
e 

m
is

s 
yo

u)
,


N
an

cy
 C

ar
te

r, 
C

hr
is

pM
ed

ia
, T

he
 C

ro
w

 a
t 1

10
, 

El
lio

tt 
C

ou
ns

el
in

g,
 J

an
e 

an
d 

O
bd

ul
io

 E
sc

ob
ar

,

Jo

se
ph

 G
al

lo
 A

rt,
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l G

al
le

rie
s,



Do
ni

ta
 J

ac
ob

so
n,

 M
ar

io
n 

C
ou

nt
y 

H
or

izo
n 

C
en

te
r, 

Er
ic

 P
ie

rs
on

, P
os

iti
ve

 C
en

te
re

d 
Ar

t T
he

ra
py

 L
LC

,

Th

e 
Ra

in
o 

Ar
t C

ol
le

ct
iv

e,
 A

rle
ne

 R
ap

pa
po

rt,
 

Ev
el

yn
e 

Ta
rd

y, 
Vi

ck
ie

 T
ol

f, 
Pe

te
r T

ra
cy

,

Ro

ge
r E

be
rt’

s 
Fi

lm
 F

es
tiv

al
, V

irg
in

ia
 T

he
at

re

Pi
ec

es
 in

 th
is

 b
ro

ch
ur

e 
ar

e 
by

 A
IR

 a
rt

is
ts

 w
ho

se
 

w
or

k 
w

ill
 b

e 
fo

r s
al

e 
du

rin
g 

Eb
er

tf
es

t. 

Fe
at

ur
ed

 a
rti

st
s 

in
cl

ud
e:



•
C

ro
w

 a
t 1

10
 A

rti
st

s

•

Sh
irl

ey
 D

av
is



•
Su

ja
ta

 D
ey

-K
oo

nt
z


•
El

ija
h 

G
riffi

n 
(“H

ar
p”

 th
is 

pa
ge

) 
•

Pa
tti

 H
an

d

•

Vi
ct

or
ia

 K
ra

m
er



•
Pr

es
to

n 
N

. L
or

d 
(“S

ee
 th

e 
Po

in
t”

 &
 “R

og
er

 E
be

rt”
) 

•
M

el
 M

 
•

N
AM

I C
am

pu
s 

G
ro

up



•
Be

v 
Sc

hw
ei

gh
ar

t

•

Ri
ch

ar
d 

W
al

de
n


•
An

ni
e 

M
ar

ie
 W

ie
se

84

http://champaigncountyAIR.com
http://facebook.com/allianceforair


Champaign Community Coalition  -  Champaign County Mental Health Board  - Circle of Friends Adult Day Center
Courage Connection  -  Crisis Nursery  -  CU Able  -  Depression and Bipolar Support Alliance-Urbana Champaign
Developmental Services Center (DSC)  -  disAbility Resource Expo  -  Family Service of Champaign County
GROW in Illinois  -  NAMI-Champaign County (IL)  -  Pavilion Hospital and Behavioral Health System
Positive Centered Art Therapy LLC  -  Rosecrance Central Illinois  -  Swann Special Care Center

University of Illinois Urbana Champaign School of Social Work
champaigncountyAIR.com - facebook.com/allianceforAIRchampaigncountyAIR.com - facebook.com/allianceforAIR

“Zinnia V” (mixed media) by Sujata Dey-Koontz

85



C
C

M
H

B 
20

25
 B

oa
rd

 to
 B

oa
rd

 L
ia

is
on

Ja
ne

 Spra
nd

el Kyle
 Patt

ers
on Chri

s M
ine

r Elai
ne

 Pale
nc

ia

Emily 
Rod

rig
ue

z

Jo
n P

au
l Y

ou
ak

im

Jo
e O

mo-O
sa

gie

Moll
y M

cL
ay Anth

on
y N

ich
ols

C
ou

ra
ge

 C
on

ne
ct

io
n 

(4
th

 M
on

., 
5:

30
pm

)
C

C
R

PC
 (H

ea
d 

St
ar

t a
nd

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s)

C
un

ni
ng

ha
m

 C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

H
om

e 
(m

ee
ts

 q
tr

ly
)

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

Ad
vo

ca
cy

 C
tr

 (4
th

 T
hu

rs
., 

9 
am

)
C

C
 H

ea
lth

 C
ar

e 
C

on
su

m
er

s(
4t

h 
Th

ur
s.

, 6
 p

.m
.)

C
hr

is
tia

n 
H

ea
lth

 C
en

te
r (

la
st

 S
at

., 
10

 a
.m

.)
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
er

vi
ce

 C
tr

 (3
rd

 T
hu

rs
., 

4:
30

 p
m

)
C

ris
is

 N
ur

se
ry

 (2
nd

 W
ed

., 
5:

30
 p

m
)

C
U

 a
t H

om
e 

(4
th

 W
ed

., 
8 

am
)

C
U

 E
ar

ly
 (U

ni
t 1

16
 m

tg
)

D
on

 M
oy

er
 (3

rd
 T

ue
s.

, 7
 a

m
)

D
SC

 (4
th

 T
hu

rs
., 

5:
30

 p
m

)
EC

IR
M

AC
 (R

ef
ug

ee
 C

tr
 (2

nd
 T

ue
s.

, 4
 p

m
)

Fa
m

ily
 S

er
vi

ce
 (2

nd
 M

on
., 

no
on

)
Fi

rs
t F

ol
lo

w
er

s 
(g

en
er

al
ly

 3
rd

 F
ri.

, 5
 p

m
)

G
C

AP
 (?

?)
G

R
O

W
 in

 IL
 (l

as
t M

on
., 

7 
pm

)
Pr

om
is

e 
H

ea
lth

ca
re

 (4
th

 T
ue

s.
, 6

 p
m

)
X

R
AC

ES
 (3

rd
 T

hu
rs

., 
6 

pm
)

R
os

ec
ra

nc
e 

(la
st

 T
ue

s,
 4

:3
0 

pm
)

Te
rr

ap
in

 S
ta

tio
n 

So
be

r L
iv

in
g

U
P 

C
en

te
r (

2n
d 

W
ed

., 
6:

30
 p

m
)

W
IN

 R
ec

ov
er

y 
(2

nd
 M

on
da

y,
 5

:3
0 

p.
m

.)
Ex

po
 C

om
m

itt
ee

s 
(v

ar
io

us
)

X
C

om
m

un
ity

 C
oa

lit
io

n 
(2

nd
 W

ed
., 

3:
30

pm
)

X
St

ud
en

t M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 C
ol

la
b 

(1
st

 M
on

., 
11

A
M

, i
n 

pe
rs

on
 2

-3
x/

se
m

es
te

r)
X

86


	1 MHB agenda 4302025 Rev
	Champaign County Mental Health Board (CCMHB) Meeting Agenda

	2 MHB 2025 Mtg Schedule
	3 DDB 2025 Mtg schedule
	4 MHB PY26 allocation timeline and meeting schedule
	5 MHB Glossary 2025
	6 MHB DMemo Agency Exception
	DECISION MEMORANDUM
	Purpose:
	Statutory Authority and Funding Requirements:
	Agency Financial Audit/Review Updates:
	History of Delays:
	Next Steps:
	Specific Agency Exception Requests:
	Possible Board Actions:

	7 CCCHC Request for BOARD Approval of Exception
	8 FF Audit Request
	8 FF Request - Audit Communication
	8 FF Request - Updated Audit Responses
	9 ISCU Request for BOARD Approval
	9 ISCU Revised Audit Engagement Letter 2025-01-20
	10 UNCC CCMHB Extension Request 25-26
	10 UNCC Signed LOE
	11 WIN Special Request form
	12 WIN 23-24 Audit Delay Documentation
	12 WIN Audit Delay Info
	13 MHB PY26 Reviewers ASSIGNED MM
	PY26 Reviewers

	14 MHBminutes 031925
	______________________________________________________________________________
	CHAMPAIGN COUNTY
	MENTAL HEALTH BOARD
	REGULAR MEETING
	Minutes—March 19, 2025
	This meeting was held
	at the Brookens Administrative Center, Urbana, IL and remotely.
	5:45 p.m.
	CALL TO ORDER:
	ROLL CALL:
	Roll call was taken, and a quorum was present.
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA:
	CITIZEN INPUT / PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:
	Kerri Hacker from GROW announced a new peer-to-peer group at the McKinley Foundation.

	15 IDDSI VIL
	16 MHB VIL
	17 MHB ADHR
	18 AIR Members Slide SMALL
	19 AIR Mission Slide 2 SMALL
	20 AIR Quote Slide SMALL
	21 AIR Supporters Slide SMALL
	22 AIR Events Slide SMALL
	23 AIR trifold 2025 rev 4-8-25
	24 air2025ad FINAL
	25 MHB liaisonchoices
	Sheet1




